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Chairman’s Statement

For the year ended 31 March, 2009, the Group’s sales
turnover increased by 21% to HK$1,869,529,000 (2008:
HK$1,547,825,000) and the consolidated net profit increased by
65% to HK$106,938,000 (2008: HK$64,872,000). Basic earnings
per share of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2009 was
HK31.9 cents (2008: HK19.3 cents). The Board of Directors
has resolved to recommend at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting the payment of a final dividend of HK12 cents (2008:
HKG6 cents) per share for the year ended 31 March, 2009. Together
with the interim dividend of HK2 cents per share paid in February
this year, the total dividend for the year ended 31 March, 2009
will be HK14 cents per share (2008: HK10 cents) delivering a
stable dividend return to our shareholders.

Business Review
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This year had been a turbulent year. In the first half, we achieved
a 36% increase in turnover while operating under adverse factors
such as the appreciation of RMB, the weakening of USD, the
surge in energy and material prices, the rising labour costs and
operating costs in the PRC. In September 2008, the financial
meltdown came as a massive shock to the whole world. The
global economy downturn and credit crunch caused the consumer
markets to slow down tremendously. The business environment
became unstable and difficult. As a result, turnover in the second
half of the financial year slowed down as some customers delayed
or cancelled some of the orders placed. At the end, we managed
to achieve a 7% increase in turnover in the second half comparing
to the same period last year. The subsequent correction of energy
and material prices and the easing of rate of RMB appreciation
allowed us to have a little bit more breathing room in the
operating margin.

During the year under review, turnover increased by 21% to
HK$1,869,529,000. Turnover increased across all major markets.
Turnover to Europe increased by 18% to HK$1,060,763,000
representing 57% of the Group’s turnover. Turnover to America
increased by 35% to HK$359,249,000 representing 19% of
the Group’s turnover. Turnover to Asia increased by 17% to
HK$401,370,000 representing 21% of the Group’s turnover.
Turnover to other markets increased by 15% to HK$48,147,000
representing 3% of the Group’s turnover.
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Chairman’s Statement

Business Review (continued)
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Gross profit for the year ended 31 March, 2009 increased to
HK$295,892,000 (2008: HK$203,623,000). Gross profit margin
improved to 15.8%.

We continue to apply stringent cost control on all aspects of our
operation. Distribution costs increased by 2% to HK$34,213,000
(2008: HK$33,445,000). As a percentage to turnover, distribution
costs reduced from 2.2% to 1.8% compared to last year.
Administration expenses increased by 9% to HK$122,041,000
(2008: HK$111,612,000). As a percentage to turnover,
administrative expenses reduced from 7.2% to 6.5% compared to
last year.

During the year under review, the Group had incurred a net
investment loss of HK$9,547,000. The loss had been incurred
mainly due to, as disclosed previously in the last annual report,
a loss of HK$9,390,000 arising from structured foreign currency
forward contracts.

Net Profit for the year increased by 65% to HK$106,938,000
(2008: HK$64,872,000).

Prospects

BE-ZFZFEZNF=HA=Z+—HILFHEZE
) 151 %295,892,0008: 7¢ ( —FE U4
203,623,000% JC) « TR RAG T E > F+ &
15.8% °

A 4 [ 4 7 B A L AR G R D SR A AR B
PEo 3 84 A F TH2%%34,213,0008 75 ( —
FEJ\AE 1 33,445,000 70 ) o 438 LA
Ao LHEE22% D £1.8% o 11
BB 572 FH9% % 122,041,0004 76 ( —FEFE
JVAE D 111,612,000% 70) © 47 BUBA 34k 4 2
Bzl AF12%8 ) £6.5% °

IR RE s A A M E A RE W5 s B
9,547,000%5 JC ° W SEHT A b —4F B 2 RN
P #E > s 187 32 el A R A BE s A
#E5169,390,000% T 5] 2%

AR AR N65% %2 106,938,000 T (&
E I\ 164,872,000 7)) ©

JR =

The global financial and economic downturn has brought about
many challenges and uncertainties. Looking ahead, the business
environment is expected to be even more challenging and difficult.
Consumer markets and sentiments are expected to deteriorate
even further. However, we strongly believe the industry would
consolidate towards manufacturers with solid financial position,
economy of scale and flexibility. With our strong fundamentals
and financial strength, we have confidence that we can meet the
difficulties and challenges ahead.

In light of all these unfavorable conditions, we would strive on
and continue to focus in cost and quality control, production
efficiency, semi-automation, new product design and development
and providing superior value-added service and products to
our customers. We believe these are the key factors that have
differentiated us from other manufacturers.
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Chairman’s Statement

Prospects (continued)
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The construction of the 2 new factory blocks in the new plant in
Huizhou city, Guangdong province was completed in June 2009.
As the business environment is still very unpredictable, we are
taking a slower pace in utilizing this new plant. We would review
and monitor our existing manufacturing capabilities very closely
and plan for the commencement in utilization of the new plant
swiftly as and when the need arises.

All in all, the Group remains committed to product development
and product quality. We are fully aware that we may be facing
unprecedented challenges and difficulties lying ahead of us. The
business environment and the global economy are volatile and full
of uncertainties. Nonetheless, with our experience, know-how,
financial strength and commitment, we will tread on cautiously
and continue to stay focused in our core business.

Liquidity and Financial Resources
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As at 31 March, 2009, the Group had total assets of
HK$1,036,196,000 (2008: HK$916,460,000) which was
financed by current liabilities of HK$394,211,000 (2008:
HK$342,819,000), long-term liabilities and deferred taxation of
HK$20,440,000 (2008: HK$32,814,000) and shareholders’ equity
of HK$621,545,000 (2008: HK$540,827,000).

The Group continued to maintain a strong balance sheet and
a healthy liquidity position. As at 31 March, 2009, the Group
held HK$335,164,000 (2008: HK$163,221,000) in cash and
bank deposits. They were mainly placed in US dollar short term
deposits, except for temporary balances held in such non-US
currencies as required pending specific payments. For the year
ended 31 March, 2009, the Group generated net cash inflow from
operating activities of HK$220,252,000 (2008: HK$95,853,000).
As at the same date, total borrowings were HK$19,755,000 (2008:
HK$33,194,000) and the gearing ratio (ratio of total borrowings to
shareholders’ equity) still remained low at 3% (2008: 6%).
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Chairman’s Statement

Liquidity and Financial Resources

(Continued)
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We continue to apply stringent control over the working
capital cycle. In view of the unstable business environment and
sentiments, we scrutinized and reviewed our purchasing and
inventory policies and trimmed down our inventory significantly
and effectively. The inventory balance as at 31 March, 2009
decreased from HK$132,902,000 to HK$58,087,000. The trade
receivables balance as at 31 March, 2009 increased by 21%
from HK$290,023,000 to HK$350,218,000 which is in line
with the turnover increase. The trade receivables turnover was
maintained at 68 days. The trade payables balance as at 31
March, 2009 decreased slightly by 4% from HK$162,110,000 to
HK$155,925,000.

Funding for day-to-day operational working capital and capital
expenditures are to be serviced by internal cash flow. For the year
ended 31 March, 2009, the group invested approximately HK$53
million (2008: HK$94 million) in plant and machinery, moulds
and tools, equipment, computer systems and other tangible assets
for expansion and upgrade to existing manufacturing facilities.
During the year, the Group had injected approximately HK$31
million for the construction of the new plant. The majority of the
Group’s capital expenditures were funded by internal resources
except for some machinery which was funded by bank loans. The
CAPEX budget for the 2009/10 is approximately HK$135 million.
With a strong financial position and available banking facilities,
the Group is able to provide sufficient financial resources for
our current commitments, working capital requirements, further
expansions of the Group’s business operations and future
investment opportunities, as and when required.

The majority of the Group’s assets and liabilities and business
transactions were denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars,
Renminbis, Euros and British Pounds. To reduce the risk arising
from fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates, the Group
had used structured foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge
against major currency exposures. However, due to subsequent
volatile market conditions, these contracts resulted in a net
realized loss of HK$9,390,000 at their expiry in July 2008. Since
then, the Group had not entered into any new structured foreign
exchange forward contracts. Currently the Group does not have
any outstanding structured foreign exchange forward contracts.
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Chairman’s Statement

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March, 2009, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Employee and Remuneration Policies
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Currently, the Group employs approximately 4,500 employees.
The majority of our employees work in the PRC. The Group
remunerates our employees based on their performances,
experiences and prevailing market rates while performances bonus
are granted on a discretionary basis. Share options may also
be granted to employees based on individual performance and
attainment of certain set targets.

Appreciation
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On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity to
express our sincere appreciation to our employees, shareholders
and business associates for their contribution and support
throughout the year.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Directors and Senior Management

Executive Directors
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HATHF

Cheung Lun, aged 81, is the founder and Chairman of the
Group. He has more than 45 years of management and technical
experience in the industry. He is responsible for formulating the
Group’s overall strategic planning and development.

Cheung Shu Wan, aged 48, is the Managing Director of the
Group. He is the son of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined the Group
in 1983. He obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science from the
University of London, England. He is responsible for the sales
& marketing, research & development and engineering functions
of the Group. He also assists the Chairman in corporate strategic
planning and development.

Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, aged 51, is the Executive Director
of the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined
the Group in 1984. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
from Kingston Polytechnic, England. She is in charge of the
overall manufacturing operations of the Group.

Cheung Lai See, Sophie, aged 46, is the Executive Director
of the Group. She is the daughter of Mr. Cheung Lun and joined
the Group in 1995. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Science
from the University of London, England and a master degree in
Business Management from the City University, England. She is
responsible for the financial and administration functions of the
Group.

Cheung Pui, aged 62, is the Executive Director of the Group and
joined the Group in 1963. He has over 40 years of experience in
the plastic injection moulding industry. He is responsible for all
technical aspects of plastic injection moulding activities of the
Group.
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Directors and Senior Management

Independent
Non-executive Directors
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Chan How Chun, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Directors in September 2004. She has extensive
experience in accounting, finance and administration. She holds
a Bachelor degree in Commerce and a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Windsor in Canada and
a PhD degree in Management from the Hong Kong Baptist
University.

Lai Ah Ming, Leon, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in December 1995. He is a solicitor
majoring in commercial and property works.

Lo Chung Mau, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director in November 1997. He is a surgeon
specialising in liver surgery including liver transplantation and is
currently the Chin Lan Hong Professor and Chief of the Division
of Hepatobiliary/Pancreatic Surgery and Liver Transplantation of
the University of Hong Kong.

Senior Management
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Cheung Shu Chun, Simon, aged 49, is the General Manager
of Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited. He is the son of Mr.
Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1983. He obtained a degree
in Bachelor of Science from the University of Wales, England. He
is responsible for the manufacturing management and control of
the company.

Cheung Shu Sang, William, aged 44, is the Director of
Research and Development of the Group. He is the son of Mr.
Cheung Lun and joined the Group in 1994. He holds a BSc degree
in Computing Science and a MSc degree in Management Science,
both at Imperial College London. He also holds a PhD degree in
Automation from the University of Bristol. He is responsible for
the research and development function of the Group.

Chung Chi Yin, aged 46, is the Director of Engineering of the
Group and joined the Group in 1990. He obtained a degree in
Bachelor of Science in Product Design and Technology from The
Open University of Hong Kong. He is responsible for the product
development of the Group.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)
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Kwok Ka Lee, Carrie, aged 41, is the Manufacturing Manager
of Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited and joined the Group in
1990. She obtained a degree in Bachelor of Business (Transport
and Logistics Management) from Royal Melbourne Institute of
Technology. She is responsible for the manufacturing functions of
the company.

Leung Mun Keung, aged 50, is the General Manager of Conan
Electric Manufacturing Limited. He joined the Group in 1991 and
has over 30 years of experience in manufacturing of electrical
home appliances. He is responsible for the manufacturing
management and control of the company.

Li Wing Kong, aged 48, is the Director of Sales and Marketing
and joined the Group in 1988. He obtained a higher diploma
in Electrical Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic. He
is responsible for the Group’s sales & marketing functions in
Europe, America and other regions (except Japan).

Tsang Wing Tong, Michelle, aged 42, is the General Manager
of Allan Electric Mfg., Limited and joined the Group in 1987. She
is responsible for the manufacturing management and control of
the company.
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Directors and Senior Management

Senior Management (continued)
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Tsui Wing Keung, aged 53, is the Moulds and Tools Manager of
the Group and joined the Group in 1992. He has over 20 years of
experience in plastic injection mould making. He is responsible
for the management of the mould making operation for plastic
injection moulds.

Wong Lai Yung, aged 47, is the Finance and Account Manager
of the Group and joined the Group in 2006. She holds a master
degree of Business Administration and a master degree of
Corporate Governance of The Open University of Hong Kong.
Ms. Wong is currently a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants FCCA, Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. She is responsible for all the financial and accounting
aspects of the Group.

Wong Mei Lin, aged 46, is the Director of Administration
and Personnel of the Group and joined the Group in 2000. She
obtained a Higher Certificate in Company Secretaryship and
Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic. She is responsible
for the human resources and administration management of the
Group.

Yasuhiro Terada, aged 47, is the Marketing Manager. He
joined the Group in 1993 and has over 20 years of experience in
marketing of electrical home appliances. He is responsible for the
Group’s sales & marketing functions for Japan.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Directors’ Report

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March, 2009.

Principal Activities

o

EHGHENSMVREARNARE FEN
FZA=ZT—HILEEZERGREE R
RO AL B i o 8 o

B9

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

AN )T — B S A S 3R A A
B IR B o L o R s W] 2 SR R LA
B S R R o

6 A8 Nt A 3 i

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March, 2009 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

An interim dividend of HK2 cents per share amounting to
approximately HK$6,709,000 was paid to the shareholders
during the year. The directors now recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK12 cents per share to the shareholders
on the register of members on 19 August, 2009, amounting to
approximately HK$40,252,000, and the retention of the remaining
profit.

Major Customers and Suppliers

AEHBE_FTFNLFE=H=1+—HILF
B2 REBMRAEISHZ AR AR

AN M SR IR A b M IR A 2 A
IR S Z FEE A £56,709,000% 90 - # F &t
MR IR AT AR W BB B2 T E
JUEENH L H £ 5 B 24 it 2 B s> B
#140,252,000%5 7T f 7 B4 % 1 % A1 -

EEET MR

The percentage of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest suppliers and customers are as follows:

A AR T B R MM 78 T 2 e L i
(R ENERG e

Purchases i
— the largest supplier — fe K AL P 15%
— five largest suppliers combined — KBt E R A R 32%
Sales A
— the largest customer — K% 47%
— five largest customers combined — KB A 89%

At no time during the year, a director, an associate of a director
or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of
the directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital)
has an interest in any of the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

BEE WHEZBBENLSBOR (1F#EH
G TR A AR TS %A Z IR AR
AL A AT R[] MOE 0 B A DA L (R RE P s P 2
AT AT HE 4
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Directors’ Report

Financial Summary

o

S 5 Bt

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on page 104.

Share Capital

A B AR 42 ) 45 4 2 AR B BUAE R 2 A
B N A EME R 104 H -

€S

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

A BEA N T 2 A S B R O 4 A I
s 24 o

AN AR F) S L R 2 F R -
oS [ A 2 R A T R O

A ) ] A gy IR fk A

In addition to the retained profits, under the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus if:

(a) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and
share premium account.

In the opinion of the directors, the reserves of the Company which

were available for distribution to shareholders at 31 March, 2009
were HK$30,720,000 (2008: HK$63,931,000).

Investment Property

[ZR R R PARN R JE Y= S| AN SN
Al (BRTA) > SO B8R I8 AT 4 43 UK - 1
AN RN A E R SR A U B A O LR
(G R [

(a) TR 0 IR AR M ok (R R LB B0
Y

(b) T 5 B (R R L D R B LA
Je R AT AR B iy i 1 MR 2 48
e

ERBILHANFNR _FFZRE=ZH =+ —

H A] {623 IR 7 1% R 2 i 45 £430,720,00035 76
(= F & J)VAE 163,931,000 90) ©

BEY

Details of the investment property of the Group are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Directors’ Report

Property, Plant and Equipment

o

E DY N &)

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$53 million
on the acquisition of property, plant and equipment principally to
expand and upgrade its manufacturing facilities.

Details of these and other movements during the year in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 14
to the consolidated financial statements.

Directors and Directors’ Service
Contracts

R AR EB) A TAT = AE TR B Y
3 5T R A AR T8 R i e HL AR A G

AL B B AR F 2 W) 3 S B 2 ik
S 5 B T FUAth 5 ) 2 1 LRI B S S IR

HE a4 o

o R RS K

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Cheung Lun

Mr. Cheung Shu Wan

Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie
Mr. Cheung Pui

Independent non-executive directors
Dr. Chan How Chun

Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon

Professor Lo Chung Mau

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-Laws, Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Professor Lo Chung Mau shall
retire by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each director (except for the Chairman of
the Board and/or the Managing Director) is the period up to his/
her retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-Laws.

None of the directors of the Company proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has any service contract
with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable
by the employing company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

FERNEARERRE DA RZERWT

PuAT HE g
5 fim Jo 2k
SR A R SR
REEZ L+
5k RE M &+
i ek

8 I AT
e .
A B
L HE T B A%

MRIEA L A A AT SRS L+ [
JE T 58 BUARE IS B R AT 2 M AR R AR
AR > M DS M SR AT

REALNF 2 AFMA HEH (REHFG
T BB R AT F R
HBR AR

T S RO AR R i AT 2 AR A F
488 B AR 2 ) sl CHAT: {] B )88 2 ] T SL A W]
T — 4 g & 1k T B R A Ak R
BRAN) Z M #s5 & # o
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

o

BN EEATHAN AR
A7 ~ AR B B Ay~ 5 R
Z W SR AT

At 31 March, 2009, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Companies (“Model Code”), were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

R ERRAE=ZH =+ —H > ARAEF R
FEATHEN BRA 2~ w] KBS~ F] (GE
L I S B ] (TR R B fl )
SEXVER) B e 4y ~ AR R e 0y B {0 HEE R v
A AR PRSI SRR B 5 X VAR 557 K5 8y
VIR JEURN B AR ] S A W B S 5 2 BT A R
A (T2 BT ) ) A HE 2 SR (BLHE 98 AR
P8 I W B M 19 2 5% S A SCHAR S R
PR 2SR BORE) - BGLHRR A A A%
i 7 B B MG 1) 565 3 520 2 A 2 B R I
9 HE 48 SR BURYE BT R ST
it 77 58 oy R HEST I ([ R HEST I ) 2 B E 78
R AN ) % g S BT AR i SOR A AR

7 2 v 4 B i 40103 7T 2 35 78

Approximate
% of the
Number of ordinary shares held issued share
Personal Other capital of
Name Capacity interest interest Total the Company
R
P Ba N EREHE T RmZ
%2 260 LN 2 b B 2 By BAOTHR
Mr. Cheung Lun Founder of discretionary trust 147,399,960 147,399,960 43.94%
9f fi 55 4 X ACH P AN (Note)
(HtFt)
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan Beneficial Owner 46,903,335
SR R S AR Ha A A
Beneficiary of trust 147,399,960
(CEES PN (Note)
(Ht7t) 194,303,295 57.93%

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

o

B FEETBA AR
J% A5y ~ AH B % Ay ~ 15 RE RS
ZHER MR )

(Continued)
Approximate
% of the
Number of ordinary shares held issued share
Personal Other capital of
Name Capacity interest interest Total the Company
i 2wl
Pife BN mBEH CHETRRZ
i 5B i A B 2 Jo b pE 2 MY MHEK
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Beneficial Owner 600,000
Maggie JEETE TN
REEZ L+ Beneficiary of trust 147,399,960
fE stz a A (Note)
(M7t ) 147,999,960 44.12%
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Beneficial Owner 500,000
Sophie JEEE DN
R Beneficiary of trust 147,399,960
G4 UN (Note)
(HiFt) 147,899,960 44.09%
Mr. Cheung Pui Beneficial Owner 1,000,000 1,000,000 0.30%
o B SE AR HadEAa A
Note: Wt

bl i 4R R 2 147,399,960 A 48 w5 4 5 45
7] — M 153 4 25 o ;134,821,960 1% 43 i 55 i
WEARAE ([REfmIE]) F:¢6 > 7,298,000/
BB EREERAR (TREEED)BAE
145,280,000 8% B 4y i Unison Associates Limited
(TUAL J) 54 o 551 £ & 2 89.0%HE 45 S R 5
& 2 100%HE 25 H UALYE A < 58 1y 5& 42 2 The
Cheung Lun Family Trust ([ Trust]) Z M @E#& 7
N © Credit Suisse Trust Limited) TrustZ {8 £ A
B0 F5H100% 2 UALBEHE > TrustZ 7] fE 3% 25 A
R REREE REE Lt R L+

The references to 147,399,960 shares relate to the same block of shares in
the Company, of which 134,821,960 shares are held by Allan Investment
Company Limited (“AICL”), 7,298,000 shares are held by Commence
Investment Limited (“CIL”) and 5,280,000 shares are held by Unison
Associates Limited (“UAL”). AICL and CIL are owned as to 89.0% and
100% respectively by UAL. Mr. Cheung Lun is the settlor of The Cheung
Lun Family Trust (“Trust”). Credit Suisse Trust Limited as trustee of
the Trust holds 100% of the shareholding of UAL and the discretionary
beneficiaries of the Trust are, among others, Mr. Cheung Shu Wan, Ms.
Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie and Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie.

Annual Report 2008/2009
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ and Chief Executives’
Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

(Continued)

o

B FEETBA A
J% A5y ~ AH B % Ay ~ 15 RE B
Z MR IR )

/«

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors or chief executives,
nor their associates, of the Company had, as at 31 March,
2009, any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

Share Option Scheme

[ 42 N /NS Dl =0 e o
ﬂAE&ﬁW%At,ﬂ*§§RE*H
=+ —H > BARAN G SHEE A A (
FAE R N & W%%vaZ%%'W%
J 3 ok 5 RE 75 b > A AR R R 2 R Bk
B 56 XV B 7 B 55 8 4 8 ZEU R AR N ) T W
T > B R R B A B A6 B AR 3520 ZERE
A %G A9 Jr 3l 6 T A > SO 4 AT e S R 2
HE ZE N AR s R B 2 T 2 R A SRR
(0 5 1 S AR B 3 o I B 191 2 % S5 A5 S
BB s 2 A 2 s SR )

Jig IR it

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the scheme.

Arrangement to Purchase Shares or
Debentures

NN R
HE R RS o

l mmﬁfhﬁi&

% 5T 31 BR Ak LA 2 A 46 AT o 5 JBCAE 452 )

i By el f o5 2 22 HF

Other than the share option scheme set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Directors’ Report

Appointment of Independent
Non-executive Directors

o

WAL AT ERZRAL

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing
Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Company considers all of
the independent non-executive directors are independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
of Significance and Connected
Transactions

LN Sy VAP R o S S g
Z W RN AT S A P @ g bR
HI (T BT BRI 1) 553,130 K E 2 8 57 1k
ANFREE ERB L AITEESLE
SN

& ) NN P X
FHE L 5)

Conan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Conan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement
with Fair Pacific Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL, a
substantial shareholder of the Company, pursuant to which Fair
Pacific Limited granted to Conan a tenancy in respect of certain
land in Lilin, Huicheng District, Huizhou City, the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) at a monthly rent of HK$28,300. The
tenancy agreement was for a term of three years commenced from
1 October, 2003 and renewable up to year 2028 on every 7 years.
The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in respect
of this agreement was HK$339,600.

Allan Plastics Mfg., Limited (“APML”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
Income Village Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of AICL,
pursuant to which Income Village Limited granted to APML a
tenancy in respect of certain premises in Lilin Village, Huicheng
District, Huizhou City, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$17,000.
The tenancy agreement was for a term of three years commenced
from 1 April, 2006. The total amount of rent paid for the year
by the Group in respect of this agreement was HK$204,000.
The tenancy agreement expired on 31 March, 2009 and APML
renewed the agreement with Income Village Limited for a term of
36 months commenced from 1 April, 2009.

i EEREERAR ([HEfM]) > AN A
2GR W& S T B NE AT RS FET ST
—JAFHA) - IR R 7 & B i (AR
Al FEBR) 2 EHA B A A R
FHL &y > 13 N A R 2 =) % o 74 o 3 N R IE AN
B (T A (B ) S ) T I [ R A B BB -
AL AR > A #128,3000 T o 5% LAY —
FEZAET A — HB - BT K HZ S
TAEMH E 2 T F 7\ AE o A5 %A 4
T A A IR B AsH 22 #HL 4 #2588 339,600 7T

mmE R A RAR ([EEfmERB]) > A&
O 2 AR T A E s B A B
A RS — T A o ff 85 A BR 2 ] £ 5E A 4%
B g A A IR A A
B 2 0 4 A7 7 w1 P T O R PR B
EBOY Y S TR YE I - H AH 17,0005 7€
A R FENENHA — H R EL
Ly B = o 7S 4 R R L A4 A AR AR BE A BT AF
Z 4 S5 55204,0009 00 - Z LA E Y
EENE=ZA=Z=+—B 8 Wn - F=%
JUAE A — H %5 25 836 A A i 4 -
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
of Significance and Connected
Transactions (continued)

Karan Electric Manufacturing Limited (“Karan”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a tenancy agreement with
AICL, pursuant to which AICL granted to Karan a tenancy in
respect of certain premises in Lilin, Huicheng District, Huizhou
City, the PRC at a monthly rent of HK$75,000. The tenancy
agreement was for a term of 36 months commenced from 1 April,
2008. The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in
respect of this agreement was HK$900,000.

BtmEEGRMARLS A CHBWHE?), a wholly
foreign-owned enterprise of the Company, entered into two
tenancy agreements with Mr. Cheung Pui, pursuant to which Mr.
Cheung Pui granted to # [ 1i# a tenancy in respect of certain
premises in Lilin, Huicheng District, Huizhou City, the PRC at
a monthly rent of RMB7,500 and RMB18,000, respectively. The
first tenancy agreement was for a term of 3 years commenced
from 1 January, 2006. The total amount of rent paid for the
year by the Group in respect of this agreement was RMB22,500
(equivalent to HK$25,400). The second tenancy agreement was
for a term of three years commenced from 1 October, 2005. The
total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group in respect of
this agreement was RMB54,000 (equivalent to HK$61,000). These
two tenancy agreements terminated on 30 June, 2008 and =[5 I}
#E entered into a new tenancy agreement with Mr. Cheung Pui,
pursuant to which Mr. Cheung Pui granted to 5 1## a tenancy
in respect of certain premises in Lilin, Huicheng District, Huizhou
City, the PRC at a total monthly rent of RMB45,000. This tenancy
agreement was for a term of 3 years commenced from 1 July,
2008. The total amount of rent paid for the year by the Group
in respect of this agreement was RMB405,000 (equivalent to
HK$459,000).

Allan International Holdings Limited

2000 i ff o B 42 B A B )
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Interests in Contracts
of Significance and Connected
Transactions (continued)

The independent non-executive directors confirm that the
transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary course of its business, on normal commercial terms, and
in accordance with the terms of the agreement governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Other than as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

Emolument Policy

ARF 2B PATEHRCHFR U LS
M 58 2 % 2L B B 28 5y Y IR AR A w HH J—
e S5 it AR v 1 — M P SR KT S KB
WU A by 2 A B Tih ke 2 AR 98 > L Ak R 28
-5 BN AT A A28 AR 2 R A 4 o

B b SO B 85 3 A1 > T AR 5 BUAR AT ] R
[T AR 0 HL Ay A 2 ) T T 2 ) AT 5L B
/AR & Rk TIANE S DN £
HEH -

Hr I R

The Company has not set up a remuneration committee. The
Board of Directors (the “Board”) is responsible for reviewing
the remuneration policy and packages of the directors and senior
executives and made recommendations about their proposals to the
Chairman which are determined by reference to the performance
of the individuals, the Group, market practices and conditions with
a view to retain and motivate executives to pursue the Group’s
operation. The Personnel Department is responsible for collecting
human resources data and recommending proposal to the Board
for consideration.

AANF MR LHMEE G -ERFAE
At 3 P BOSR J% BE  B  AR AT B B 2 Fr
A 3l ) R P A R MR A B T2 R
Bl AR H 2 S5 TS ) K LR E
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THERBOR
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Substantial Shareholders

So far is known to any director or chief executive of the Company,
at 31 March, 2009, shareholders (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336

of the SFO or had otherwise notified to the Company were as I
follows:
Long positions of substantial shareholders in the shares of BEBRRARA A B2 R
the Company
Approximate
Number of % of
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares shareholding
i B RE 2
JBE 3K 44 A 56 W I8 B By & H A
Credit Suisse Trust Limited Trustee 147,399,960 43.94%
Hit A
UAL Held by controlled corporation 142,119,960 42.37%
PR 2 A v A
Beneficial Owner 5,280,000 1.57%
Hala A
AICL Beneficial Owner 134,821,960 40.19%
ai A 5CE A PR A H Ha A A
Webb, David Michael Beneficial Owner 3,874,000 1.15%
HaEA N
Held by controlled corporation 19,630,000 5.85%
FrEE 2 A w R A (Note)
( Bt 7t )
Preferable Situation Assets Limited Beneficial Owner 16,816,000 5.01%
HumdEa A (Note)
(Bt 7)

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Directors’ Report

Substantial Shareholders (continued)

o

FERHE )

Note:

The reference to 19,630,000 shares above are held by Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. Webb, David
Michael. According to a notice filed pursuant to Part XV of the SFO, the
shareholding of Preferable Situation Assets Limited in the Company was
increased from 16,816,000 shares to 19,630,000 shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March, 2009, the Company has
not been notified by any persons (other than directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of
the SFO.

Donations

Bt -

bt JIr 42 J% 1919,630,000/8 [ 143 HH Webb, David
Michaelst 4= 2 # #% il Z Preferable Situation
Assets Limited ¥ o R 95 % 1 8 06 61 55 X VP
fir & 2 1 > Preferable Situation Assets Limited
AR T TR 2 B B116,816,000 % 34 fin =
19,630,0004% °

B b S HT 4 8k F AL R &R & LA = A
=t —Ho MR A L& (AR R EENE
BATEN BBRAN) 8GRI A2 m] A AR
I7 Lo 0 B R0 50 XV R 252 e B 300 ¥ 2 A 3T
JR 1) A% ) 4% i o8 T R AR 2 ) 3 e 0
B W 9] 265 336 B A7 2 K T i A Y AS 2 )
e A7 BAR B B 173 2 i BRIR A

1R K

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to approximately HK$1,780,000.

Corporate Governance

R AREEL TS KA 2 5K
#) 551,780,000 JT o

e R

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices of the Company is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” on page 25 to 32.
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Directors’ Report L NCEE

. . r e
Pre-emptive Rights 18 5 i
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the AN R 2 2N R AR R B RS A ) AR e R 5]
Company’s Bye-Laws, or the laws in Bermuda, which would AR S R RE 2 KL > AR ] R JE R U
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to HLE T i BUAT TR 2 R i LU A B AT T A

existing shareholders.

_ . + gL =L
Sufficiency of Public Float B AR R IR
Based on information that is publicly available to the Company RN T AR ER 2 ER A AT
and within the knowledge of its directors, the directors confirm HR P R AL A FE N — B AR
that the Company has maintained during the year the amount of TR L E 2 A AR IR

public float as required by the Listing Rules.

Auditor 12 B A

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to A i IR RO AR K| b i e R — T R
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the AR BETATAEE) B R G R IAT 5
Company. AN F) A% BT

On behalf of the Board #RGMNE

Cheung Lun L3

Chairman F

Hong Kong, 8 July, 2009 - “EXHHFELHNH

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company recognizes that good corporate governance is vital
to the success of the Group and the sustained development of the
Group. The Company aims at complying with, where appropriate,
all code provisions set out in Appendix 14 Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as
set out in the CG Code of the Listing Rules. The Company has,
throughout the year ended 31 March, 2009 and up to the date of
publication of the annual report, applied and complied with most
of the Code Provisions save certain deviations from the Code
Provisions in respect of code provisions A4.1, A.4.2, B.1.1 and
E.1.2 details of which are explained below.

Securities Transactions by Directors

AEER R,

AN AR R S IR AR 2
LA+ B o AN R By (fE
BEE LT ) B 5 ) P AT IR ] o7
BRI T i AL ) B Sk 14T 4 68 1R
RS RLL (T s A ) A BT A 7RI SC
([sy RIS ) e

AN T 2 AR T B R R R B
B 142 A5 1 ) i S B 00 s B RR < B A S
1M HT o BR<F I XA 4.1 ~A42 B.1.1 K
E. 124 2~ /) A 4 1w 8 <7 B SCAT 23 4h
(A T oCEFHl) > AR AN E —FF L
FEZAZT—HIEFE MR E R
FHH IE > O3S RFEASF B S -

HPIETH T LS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has made specific enquiry to all Directors regarding any
non-compliance with the Model Code during the year under
review and they have all confirmed that they had fully complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

Board of Directors

AL A R AN BB Bk - Bk 2 b
BAT N TR IR 5 R YE ST A (15
Hesp I ) o AN 20 W] R bl 5 S (e A
A5 A ] R A7 282 <7 AR e <1 I 2 A7 B 1
Al A HE S Y AR RE S O o2 AL AR
He ST JI) B ML 2 R EE o

R

The Board comprises of five Executive Directors, being Mr.
Cheung Lun (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Shu Wan (Managing
Director), Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie, Ms. Cheung Lai See,
Sophie and Mr. Cheung Pui; three Independent Non-executive
Directors, being Dr. Chan How Chun, Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon
and Professor Lo Chung Mau. Biographical details, which include
relationships among members of the Board, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of the annual report.

ARrERHFNAOFELARTES K
Jeds (EM) oA (EHER) -
Rt R Lo R ek s =
AL ATIE S BREF A AL BN
e I L RE B AR o JEE RN (LR K
EH) 2 BRAR ) SHOT A 47 9 [ 26 5 M A B
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

A )

i

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board
and the management. The Board is responsible for providing
high-level guidance and effective oversight of the management
while day-to-day management of the Group is delegated to
the management team of each respective subsidiary. Generally
speaking, the Board is responsible for:

. Formulating the Group’s long term strategy and monitoring
the implementation thereof

. Approval of interim and year end dividend

. Reviewing and approving the annual and interim reports

. Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance

. Monitoring the performance of the management

. Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and assets
disposal

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategies
that have been approved.

The Board meets regularly at least four times a year and additional
meetings or telephone conferences are convened as and when the
Board considers necessary. During the year, eight board meetings
were held. Details of the Directors’ attendance record in the year
are as follows:

Attendance/

Executive Directors No. of meeting

Mr. Cheung Lun 8/8
Mr. Cheung Shu Wan 8/8
Ms. Cheung Lai Chun, Maggie 8/8
Ms. Cheung Lai See, Sophie 8/8
Mr. Cheung Pui 8/8

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Chan How Chun 6/8
Mr. Lai Ah Ming, Leon 6/8
Professor Lo Chung Mau 6/8

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

Board of Directors (continued)

AEER R,

EE 00

The Company has complied with the Rules 3.10(1) and (2)
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent Non-executive Directors and one of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related finance management
expertise. Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has
made an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

A F CESE B ERIEE3.1000) X Q)A
B> B = FE i irE s> Kk Hp
— BT E R AR HER
M 56 5T EM B A B R 2 B E o 1
A J8 7 JE AT S MR T AR I 23,13
e 2 H5E > St H B S VEAE AR TR RE o AR
A RB A A B AT E F A LT
AIZE3. 130 T il 2 Mo vE R 51 > MR #5455
AR S Y ELB T M o

E R AT B

The Board considered that the duties of the Managing Director
(“MD”) were no different from that required of a chief executive
officer stipulated under the code provision A.2 of the Code. The
management would regard that the term MD will have the same
meaning as the chief executive officer of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is an Executive Director, who is
responsible for the leadership and effective running of the Board,
and ensuring that all significant and key issues are discussed and
where required, resolved by the Board timely and constructively.

The MD of the Board is delegated with the authority and
responsibility to run the Group’s business and day-to-day
operation, and implement the Group’s strategy with respect to the
achievement of its business objectives with the assistance of the
Executive Directors and senior management.

AR o SRR I B U S
A 20K RT B SR AT B R 2 R I 22
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ERGERAPATES HARFEESR
o 3 A O EL A OB AR > LR R I AR
e He A Mk i vy SN0 A B Ry R DR BT R
L ] o I

R A A P T R BR % B A B
AR T 25 2 T B A I AR AT
AR A B B T BT AL
7 BOHSE 5 F AR T AT 2 SRS

Annual Report 2008/2009
TRBEE RBIEER

27



Corporate Governance Report

Appointment and
Re-election of Directors

AEER R,

R R Mk

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Currently, none of the three independent non-executive directors
of the Company is appointed for a specific term. This constitutes
a deviation from the GC Code. In accordance with the provisions
of the Bye-laws of the Company, any director appointed by the
Board during the year shall retire and submit themselves for
re-election at the first general meeting immediately following
his/her appointment. Further, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the directors for the time being, or if their number
is not three or multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not exceeding one-third, shall retire from office. The directors to
retire by rotation shall be those who have been longest in office
since their last re-election or appointment. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the Company’s corporate governance practices are similar to those
in the GC Code.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy should be subject to election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting after their appointment,
and every director, including those appointed for a specific term,
should be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman and/or
Managing Director is not subject to retirement by rotation or taken
into account on determining the number of Directors to retire.
This constitutes a deviation from the GC Code. As continuation
is a key factor to the successful implementation of any long term
business plans, the Board believes that, the present arrangement is
most beneficial to the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Corporate Governance Report

Remuneration Committee

AEER R,
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The Company has not set up a remuneration committee. The
Board is responsible for reviewing the remuneration policy
and packages of all directors and senior executives and made
recommendations about their proposals to the Chairman which
are determined by reference to the performance of the individuals,
the Group, market practices and conditions with a view to
retain and motivate executives to pursue the Group’s operation.
The Personnel Department is responsible for collecting human
resources data and recommending proposal to the Board for
consideration. The Chairman does not participate in determining
his own remuneration.

Nomination of Directors

AANF MR L MER G - EREHE
At B P B % B S B R AR AT B B 2 Fr
3 3l ) R PR SRR R MR A B T2 R
B AR 2 e TS S LR
5 SR 40 B T % i A 1 BT A A A A T AL
Jre NEHE B RE NN EBEME > AR5
2 e R o LRI 2 B RT E K
A 1 T 4 o
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Currently, the Company does not have a nomination committee.
The Board will identify individuals suitably qualified to become
board members when necessary. The Board will give due
consideration to the suitability of a candidate for directorship after
taking into account of his/her experience, qualification and other
relevant factors. All candidates must also meet the standards as
set forth in Rules 3.08 and 3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate
who is to be appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director
should also meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Communication with Shareholders

BURF - AR R IR 2 & B & > I 3 H g%
RAERERYOAEGHEZ AR NN AE
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The Company regards its Annual General Meeting as an
opportunity for direct communication between the Board and its
shareholders. All Directors and external auditors make an effort
to attend the Annual General Meeting to address shareholders’
queries. The Company also responds to requests for information
and queries from the shareholders and investors and welcomes
the views of shareholders on matter affecting the Group and
encourages them to attend shareholders’ meeting to communicate
any concerns they might have with the Board.

Ox FIAR B RO AR R g 5 R I RO A
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Communication with Shareholders

(Continued)

AEER R,
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Both the Chairman of the Board and the Chairman of the Audit
Committee had not attended the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 25 August, 2008. The Chairmen will endeavour
to attend all future annual general meetings of the Company
unless unexpected or special circumstances prevent them from
doing so.

Auditor’s Remuneration

%%@i!ﬁ&%ﬁéﬁéiﬁjﬁﬂftﬂﬁﬁ
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During the year under review, the remuneration payable to the
Company’s auditors, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as
follows:

Services rendered Fees payable

HK$ 000

Audit services 1,769
Non-audit services

Review of interim results 267

Taxation services 303

Audit of occupational retirement scheme 23

Audit Committee
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The Audit Committee was established in 1999 and comprises
three Board members, all of whom are Independent Non-executive
Directors. The Audit Committee has adopted the same term
of reference, which describes the authority and duties of the
Committee, as quoted under code provision C.3.3 of the GC Code.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Audit Committee (continued)

AEER R,
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The Audit Committee will meet at least twice each year. During
the year, the Audit Committee met twice considering the annual
results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March, 2008
and the interim results of the Group for the 6 months ended 30
September, 2008, assessing any changes in accounting policies
and practices, major judgmental areas and compliance with
applicable legal and accounting requirements and standards,
discussing with the auditor of the Company on internal control.

Details of Committee members and their attendance records are
listed as below:

Attendance/

Committee member No. of meeting

Dr. Chan How Chun (Independent Non-executive 212
Director & Chairman of
the Audit Committee)
Mr. Lai Ah Ming Leon  (Independent Non-executive Director) 2/2
Professor Lo Chung Mau  (Independent Non-executive Director) 212

Director’s Responsibilities for the
Financial Statement

FREAGHRTFEE D HHERWIK-F
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The Board acknowledges that it is their responsibility for (i)
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements of the Group
with a view to ensuring such financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and (ii) selecting
suitable accounting policies and applying the selected accounting
policies consistently with the support of reasonable and prudent
judgement and estimates.

A statement by the auditors about their reporting responsibilities
is set out on page 33 to 34 of this Annual Report.
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Internal Controls

EER R,
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The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a sound and
effective internal control system for the Group to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Group as a whole and to ensure
strict compliance with relevant laws, rules and regulations. The
Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of
the internal control system and reporting to the Board.

The Group’s internal control system comprises a well established
organisational structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
Areas of responsibilities for each business and functional unit
are clearly defined to ensure effective checks and balances.
Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper accounting
records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information
used within the business or for publication. The procedures
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
errors, losses or fraud. Procedures have also been designed to
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year, the Audit Committee and the Board carried
out an overview on the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material internal control
aspects of any significant problems were noted. Both the Audit
Committee and the Board were satisfied that the internal control
system of the Group had functioned effectively during the year
under review. During the annual review, the audit committee also
reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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— =« BERHBEET Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
e OItte Ecpmiy=lelen 35/F One Pacific Place
i K55 B—FE35iE

88 Queensway

/E Hong Kong
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TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLAN INTERNATIONAL H

HOLDINGS LIMITED o A 1 B A I A R A ) A B R

A i A T A )

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Allan International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 35 to 103, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 March, 2009, and the consolidated income statement,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Auditor’s Responsibility
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as
to whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion
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In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March,
2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong
8 July, 2009

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Ay Wt %
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2009 2008
—ERUAE TERE N
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
il T T
Revenue = S 6 1,869,529 1,547,825
Cost of sales FER N 1,573,637) (1,344,202)
Gross profit E A 295,892 203,623
Other income HAth A 2 2,320 1,007
Investment and other (loss) gain on % & f H Ath 4% ‘T2
investment (Es48) B 7 (9,547) 11,276
Selling and distribution expenses BB T o 85 LA (34,213) (33,445)
Administrative expenses 11T BUSA (122,041) (111,612)
(Decrease) increase in fair value of &2 /N RMEH
an investment property (7)) 159 (700) 4,960
Interest on bank borrowings wholly  ZE & F1. 4F (A 2% B {H 42 8- 17
repayable within five years B ZFE (830) (1,052)
Profit before tax B A 1T Y A 130,881 74,757
Income tax expense Jir 5 8 B 32 9 (23,943) (9,885)
Profit for the year A B Vs 10 106,938 64,872
Dividends paid E AT IS 11
2009 Interim dividend of “EEZNEEH
HK2 cents (2008: o 30 i S B2 v A1l

2008 interim dividend of (ZFF)\AF 4%l
HK4 cents) per ordinary share 6,709 13,417

2008 final dividend of HK6 cents ZEENFEAT
(2008: 2007 final dividend of A 8 B 63 A1l
HK?7 cents) per ordinary share (ZFF LA 7i0) 20,126 23,480
26,835 36,897
Earnings per share g e 2 A 12
Basic AR HK31.9 cents HK19.3 cents
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At 31 March, 2009

Non-current assets
Investment property
Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid lease payments
Available-for-sale investments
Other financial assets
Prepayment for acquisition of

property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables and
bills receivable

Other receivables

Mould deposits paid

Prepaid lease payments

Available-for-sale investments

Other financial assets

Tax recoverable

Time deposits and deposits
placed with banks and a
financial institution

Bank balances and cash

Current liabilities
Trade payables and bills payable
Other payables and accruals
Mould deposits received
Other financial liabilities
Tax payable
Secured bank loans
— due within one year

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Allan International Holdings Limited

R B |

Consolidated Balance Sheet

I B & =
L&Y%
E X N E S
T BKOH
AR E
oAt S 85
BT HEYE-
i 55 R i

B &
&

8 Wi B 5 B Ak I
8 W S 4
LAt 1B i B K
BT T &
T KIH
AR E
oAt A 85 5

JE 2B B TH
R JAT SR B 4
AT 3K

BRITHF B &

ik UB=E

JEASH B2 2 ek B B AT SR 0B
JHL At B ST R B R A R A
E W 25T &
ot B4 5 1 A

JRE AR A T

R ERAT B

— —F R

LB A EHE

A E U B A

Notes

it

13
14
15
16
17

18

19
19

15
16
17

20
20

21

17

22

2009 2008
2 /K T )\AE
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T # F T
8,800 9,500
188,654 179,702
42,040 42,392
8,417 55,731
4,267 5,463
976 435
253,154 293,223
58,087 132,902
350,218 290,023
25,270 20,910
5,101 6,496
754 746
3,434 3,898
3,858 562
1,156 4,479
263,375 91,791
71,789 71,430
783,042 623,237
155,925 162,110
197,258 148,245
13,614 14,375
- 963
15,938 3,687
11,476 13,439
394,211 342,819
388,831 280,418
641,985 573,641




Consolidated Balance Sheet A ERffH

At 31 March, 2009 W ZEENF=H="1+—H
2009 2008
2 /K ZERENAE
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
Bt 7t T # F T
Non-current liabilities IF LB A
Deferred tax liabilities A S B IH 23 12,161 13,059
Secured bank loans AT A A B
— due after one year — — 4% 3| 3 22 8,279 19,755
20,440 32,814
Net assets B FE 621,545 540,827
Capital and reserves A KAt
Share capital A 24 33,543 33,543
Reserves it 588,002 507,284
621,545 540,827
The consolidated financial statements on pages 35 to 103 were WINEISHEIEZ M REEC R —F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 8 T B N H M & 2w il 0 K IR HE R
July, 2009 and are signed on its behalf by: ol H R E FH AR
CHEUNG LAI CHUN, MAGGIE CHEUNG LAI SEE, SOPHIE
REZ %
Director Director
HH HH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity £ RE 4 5 ) 3%

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BE_EENF=H=

Capital  Investment

Share Share  redemption  revaluation Exchange Dividend Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
JBt A #%
BeA BB RR Y ik oA i 58 Bt 0 B RRAA Hm

HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
T THT TH#T THT Ti#T TH#T TH#T T#T

At 1 April, 2007 REZFZLENA—H 33,543 109,884 193 (6,461) - 23,480 332,493 493,732

Gain on fair value changes of  F[HEth & 2

available-for-sale investments RS T H 2 2 & Al - - - 7,798 - - - 7,798
Exchange differences arising ~ #1E % 25| ¥ 2

on translation EREH - - - - 11,455 - - 11,455
Net income recognized T ONERAS Eod 4

directly in equity - - - 7,198 11,455 - - 19,253
Investment revaluation reserve £t B 5 ff i fi i 1

released on disposal of AT i A o

available-for-sale investments - - - (133) - - - (133)
Profit for the year AR A - = - - - - 64,872 64,872
Total recognized income KB HERRA

for the year - - - 7,665 11,455 - 64,872 83,992
Dividend proposed for 2008 IR _-FZ /\FERE - - - - - 20,126 (20,126) =
Dividends paid EfRE - - - - - (23,480) (13,417) (36,897)
At 31 March, 2008 and REFFNE

1 April, 2008 ZAZt—HER

ZEZNEMA—H 33,543 109,884 793 1,204 11,455 20,126 363,822 540,827

Loss on fair value changes of A fit i & 2 £ &

available-for-sale investments  FA/A T-E5H) 2 B4 - - = (33811) = = = (3811)
Exchange differences arising % H 2 25| El 2
on translation s - - - - 1,569 - - 1,569

Net (loss) income recognized ¥ (%5#) A H #

directly in equity T HERR - - - (3.811) 1,569 - = (2242)
Tnvestment revaluation reserve £ B 3 ff [ f i 1 B

released on disposal of A i A R o

available-for-sale investments - - - 2,857 - - - 2,857
Profit for the year TRAE 1 A - - - - - - 106,938 106,938
Total recognized income FAEFERERRA

for the year = = = (954) 1,569 = 106,938 107,553
Dividend proposed for 2009 #E k% “FF JLE R A - - - - - 40,252 (40,252) =
Dividends paid EfRE - = - - - (20,126) (6,709) (26,835)
At 31 March, 2009 REFENE

=Zf=t+-H 33,543 109,884 793 250 13,024 40,252 423,799 621,545

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March, 2009

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Release of prepaid lease payments
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Decrease (increase) in fair value of
an investment property
Interest expenses
Investment and other loss (gain)
on investment
(Gain) loss on disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Write-off of property, plant and
equipment
(Reversal of) allowance for bad and
doubtful debt, net

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Increase in trade receivables and
bills receivable

Increase in other receivables

(Payment) receipts for foreign currency
forward contracts

Decrease in mould deposits paid

(Decrease) increase in trade payables
and bills payable

Increase in other payables and accruals

(Decrease) increase in mould deposits
received

Cash generated from operations
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded
The People’s Republic of China

(the “PRC”) enterprise income tax paid

NET CASH GENERATED FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

HE-E

BB B

R L i it A1)

i

TEAH AL A T e

UE RN N Sl P

BOEW N FEBD ()

B 3

B B H A B 1 s 1R
(ZLA)

&Y s K 2
(Wit ) s 18

R ) 2 ~ WS B R A

SRR (4] #E4h

ﬁ% 5% &ﬁ% LRI
HL At B WS K TE 3
SR A A (30 WA

2 AR L 42 4 D

ﬁﬁ 2 T Wk KA SRR
/J\ /iﬁ jm

iiﬁﬁﬂ?ff%% limgffﬂiffi‘ﬂﬂ

A B4 (W) /3

REEGELEZBE

B A & W A5 B

18 [8] 7 ¥ A1 15 B

B A EE A B 3 ) A 36 P 45 1

B WY o A A 2 Bl iR

PR ﬁlﬁ{ﬁﬁi’%

FNFE=H=—+—HILFE
2009 2008
SRFE CEBRAR
HKS$°000 HK$’000
T#x T#oT
130,881 74,757
686 716
33,040 40,265
700 (4,960)
830 1,052
9,547 (11,276)
(296) 2,203
10,008 1,743
(405) 223
184,991 104,723
74,815 (28,892)
(59,790) (102,004)
(4,168) (12,469)
(9,791) 5,152
1,395 2,089
(6,185) 59,182
49,013 82,580
(761) 1,425
229,519 111,786
(4,898) (12,923)
1,633 247
(6,002) (3,257)
220,252 95,853
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 March, 2009

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) decrease in time deposits and
deposits placed with banks and
a financial institution
Acquisition of property,
plant and equipment
Acquisition of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Proceeds from sales of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Prepayment for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of
available-for-sale investments
Interest received
Proceeds from disposal of
property, plant and equipment
Acquisition of available-for-sale
investments

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid

Repayment of bank loans
Interest paid

New bank loans raised

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR,
representing bank balances and cash

Allan International Holdings Limited

Q0O i 42 B A R 7]

HE-E

BEEH
E JAAT R BAT R RAT K
SRS () D

B L 3 W B

N e T
B ¥

th AR 4 1 A TR S 2
B

B BRI ~ 903 B B

H 5 4 0 82 9 18 20

Y Eps!
ﬁ%%% i 5 I A i 4% K IR

i3SI RS S

B YE 36 B) i 6 BL 4 5

RN

AT S
ERRITE R
At FLE
R AT K

ik Y 4% ) O #E BL 4 81
BERBEFEMmM, (WD)

3
EPZBLE R BLEFMHNH

ERZBE KRB ESMHHEA -

R SR AT R A B

PR ﬁlﬁ{ﬁﬁi’%

EhNF=H="+—HILFEF
2009 2008
ZEFhAE TEL )\
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T C T oC
(171,584) 357
(52,838) (94,076)
(4,668) (5,455)
1,554 -
(976) (389)
43,913 9,263
2,994 6,040
2,816 4,877
— (9,896)
(178,789) (89,279)
(26,835) (36,897)
13,439) (9,472)
(830) (1,052)
— 29,078
(41,104) (18,343)
359 (11,769)
71,430 83,199
71,789 71,430




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

General

[E

AL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The immediate and ultimate holding company
is Allan Investment Co. Ltd., a private company incorporated
in Hong Kong. The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services to its subsidiaries.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are manufacture
and distribution of household electrical appliances.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

Application of new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs™)

A5 F I TR A W A
B 7 H O 1 T VS 0 1 2 5 BT
B LT (THESERR)) - B R i
PN/ 7 B R A IR R R
s LT o A ) R 0
i e 2 S B AR AR [ 7
A4 O b R -

AN T Ty B B A R R AR A S
B 5 > FL RS B o> w] A E B RS 2y

Br G BB AR TS LA TR - IR A
AZ MR-

PR el M BRT 2
A 7 S 25 iy Y
(7 s H 85 e o

#H )

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) which are or have become effective.

AL ARERAU TR EBE
w2 & B AR AT Z A RT S B (R XX
R [ 7 s s o YE R ) o

Hong Kong Accounting Reclassification of Financial Frits g et SHEENENE
Standard (“HKAS”) 39 & Assets TSR
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) BB B R
B (BTE)
HK(IFRIC) — Int 12 Service Concession il (BB MR s
Arrangements W4 i )
—wfA T
HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 HKAS 19 — The Limit on i (BB B 7 s B 2 )
a Defined Benefit Asset, WEHRE ) F s B R E R
Minimum Funding — R B RiKEHE L

Requirements and their
Interaction

AR 1 0 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Application of new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

2.

PR el BB RT 2
A 7 S 255 iy E
(7 s B 85 i o

MR )

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current or
prior accounting periods have been prepared and presented.
Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations that have

been issued but are not yet effective.

PR 1045 507 4 985 B 5 e o YR ) > Sl 92
A A & I ] B DA A R ) 2 2
A8 S 5 IR L 2 A il e 25 A E R Y
B o [R>S ZE AU A S0 ] A o S R

74 B Sl R B L T 81 A A AEL ¥
R B 2 T T B R AT HE I~ B AT AR

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs’ 7 s B A 2 DU A i BT R
(BiTA)
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 7 s B A 2 e ZEENERSCER B
2009° (BT %) B S A
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial i g At Ed W ikE 2 25
Statements’ FE—E (BT
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs’ B aTHER fig 8 WA
BT (BB
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Fib st GARBLMERE
Financial Statements? AL (BT
HKAS 32 & 1 Puttable Financial ik gt A B AR
(Amendments) Instruments and FETIHR EREL 2R
Obligations Arising on F—9 (BTA)
Liquidation’
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedged items* Bk e e BERMHMIER
BT (BATE)
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in v B ot (i) NG RPN EEZ TN
(Amendments) a Subsidiary, Jointly AR REEE REE A ARG A
Controlled Entity or iy ot
Associate’ (BaTA)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and s B ot e WE A5 0 1 T TR
Cancellations’ B (BATA)
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations* 7 s B A 2 EHa
B (RE3T)
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about 7 i B A e O RH TH A
Financial Instruments’ FLH (BAA)
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments’ 7 s s A e "Eng
YN
HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 & Embedded Derivatives® ik (BRMHESR  NERELR

HKAS 39 (Amendments)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

2. Application of new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

e

PR el BB RT 2
A 7 S 255 iy E
(7 s B 85 i o

MR )

HK{IFRIC) — Int 13 Customer Loyalty
Programmes?®

HKIFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the
Construction of Real
Estate’

HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment

in a Foreign Operation”

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash
Assets to Owners?

HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers?®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January,
2009 except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January,
2009, 1 July, 2009 and 1 January, 2010, as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January,

2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July,
2009

2 Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June, 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July,

2008

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October,
2008

Z Effective for transters on or after 1 July, 2009

The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
Group’s accounting for business combination for which
the acquisition date is on or after 1 April, 2010. HKAS 27
(Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for changes in
the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised standards, amendments or interpretations
will have no material impact on the results and the financial
position of the Group.

Eilk (BRI H EF Balal e
BRI
-eBHt=i
Eilk (BB B
BERER)
—t B T I
Eils (PR SRR BLR 2 B
ERE)
- BH AR
Rl (PR mAEE RS K
)
—eBH L
Eils (BB EFEEMEYS
BRI
- BH AN
L RCEEAFE N — AR EE
SEMIMIAES - TS B R RS
YL N FEAFLH
5.2 7% 4 LA AE S B 5 -
D RCFEAFH M FEAF
tH—H UR_-F—FF—H—H
2 AL A2 -
S R BEAE—A—HRZ R

H] Jr] A5

t R EELENFELH - HEZEFEE
H AL

’ A BLEAFENA = HHREZ
1% A S IR A 3

o ROEENFLHA - HEZEFE
H] Jr] A5

7 REZFFNEFHA AR EFEE
H AL -

S BHRZFENFLA—HEZE
HY P o

PR A ol T s At VA R = 0% (R E
R ATRER BB RS —F T4
WA —H B AR Z 8 & 2 &wtIr
HomE GRS T8t (RE
CIRELS 2 S5 FNEY N O PR EE
B 2 & kR B o A 4 R 3 2 T R T
oAt BT HT SR AE R HE L - B T A B
TS A AR ) 2 S A S 51K Dl T
S B .

i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

Sk P YU 5

BE - FEENF=H="1—HILFE

»

(7

3. EREERIEUR

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for investment properties
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
value, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of
disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated on consolidation.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold in the normal course of business, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Allan International Holdings Limited
A4 i A R A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Sk P YU 5

BE - FEENF=H="1—HILFE

»

(7

3. EEEFEK @

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from sales of goods are recognized when goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount.

Rental income from property is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the relevant lease terms.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair value using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
property are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use or no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the consolidated income statement in the year in which the
item is derecognized.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, over their estimated useful lives and after taking
into account their estimated residual value, using the
straight-line method.

WA W2 (A7)
S RS B W B S R I T

o

B E A B A TR R R A &
T 78 B R 3 42 B (] R v Bt A7
TR R 3 T 58 Al R A BT Wi B < 4 S 5
EEMF A ERFEITRE L EE R
[IRE X =Pyl

Yy 36 2 A B O T R AR A 0 T 4 AR
HUMERE

/3 :L7E S
REREYERERHEE L REAR
WMH -

R HERS I > LAY TIHNA (B
5 AL Ao 4 A 2 B S2) G & o A )
W RBAR - BB 3E DL E A
K EBERLFE R o S F W) 30 (H 2
B 7 AR 2 AR AR A 2R R R AU AR
Er

B T SR K AR IR
JH TR A S o B R AR A A AR
T A 1L it R o A% A e R A T E A
AT T 1R 25 ( f@&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁz
MR 2 22 BL RT3 0 R A% 1k il AR
WA A 2 AR i at R o

o3k ~ W By B ¢

W3~ R bs Be Bt (T TREBRSM) T9
A E B H 1R BT & R (E
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Y2~ s Kt (72 TRERRSM) 2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

3. EEEFER @

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognized impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for
their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which the item
is derecognized.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognized as income immediately.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized on
the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
three categories, including financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies
adopted in respect of each category of financial assets are set
out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments other than those financial assets designated as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

3.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including
financial assets held for trading and those designated as at
FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

J such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

J the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognized directly in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognized in profit or loss includes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

3. FEEFEOR @

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables and bills receivable, other receivables, time
deposits and deposits placed with banks and a financial
institution and bank balances and cash) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at FVTPL, held-to-maturity investments or loans and
receivables. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognized in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to
be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in equity is removed from equity
and recognized in profit or loss (see accounting policy on
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below
its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

3.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of tinancial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

U significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and bills receivable, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
credit period up to 90 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
losses will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

3.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of tinancial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and bill receivable, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognized in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable and a bill receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed through
profit or loss does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognized.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognized directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently reversed to
profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

3. EEEFER @

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified as
financial liabilities at FVTPL or other financial liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis
other than those financial liability designated as at FVTPL,
of which the interest expense is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial liabilities at FVTPL represents
financial liabilities held for trading.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

. it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

J it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

3. EEEFER @

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognized directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognized in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables and
bills payable, other payables and secured bank loans) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date.
The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts
are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

3.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.
On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognized directly in equity is recognized in profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid
and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
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Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in
the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss,
except when it relates to items charged or credited directly
to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in
equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)
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Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Consideration paid for land use rights are recorded as
prepaid lease payments and are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of
relevant land use rights acquired. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognized as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group company, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that company (foreign currencies)
are recorded in its functional currency (i.e. the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

Significant Accounting Policies

(Continued)

Sk P SR 5

BE - FEENF=H="1—HILFE

»

7

3. EEEFER @

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognized as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are recognized
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation
is disposed of.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognized as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in the
period in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Capital Risk Management

Ahs (A7)

MR WA S MBS wRRN S > AL E R
ST I E E R B R AS T R
ZME AR A SR Bl B (BN
J6) o T H A K B S B RAAE 1R £
ME A< 40 38 > B 9 400 R0 B % o B R i
B> R T > MRS HEEZ
ME R 0500 o BEE S 22 B (A0 ) 51 1R ] e
8 FAS Ry (MEE Sk 4 ) o A7 B 5t
2 B AR 1 S0 368 2 I ] A R 48 42
T -

i £ A
FI A B AR B 7 B A IR R A Wi i
FERE 2 B 2L o

B Pk R A AR
TE A A ORI AR A 513 5 2] 1 S A
Re A 2 BA ST BR o

B L

The Group manages its capital to ensure the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, being
the secured bank loans, net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, share premium and retained
profits.

S S A A1 AR A 9
BT A0 A R A £
5 T ME 2 5 B0 7 SR AR B K [ o
AT 2 8 B SR 1 O LU — B
B8 o

¢%@Z§$ R PSR TH > A KA
AT B4 KB &5 EHFE LA
A?%mﬁﬁk%%%ﬁaﬁ¢@
35 BB AT HEAS ~ 0 v A B % T ) £

B3
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements g f%ﬁ% il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BLE _FENF=H =1 —HILFE
. . ;. A it .
4. Capital Risk Management (continued) 4. EAJE BB )
The directors of the Company review the capital structure AAFEREEEMATEARLEREA
on a quarterly basis. As part of this review, the directors Fe il 2 — By B R A A
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with each Fo 4 UG A AR i R B o AR R S 2 o
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, TS S A B2 L R S A RS~ B AT
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through T o BEAT BT AR S I e A AR
the payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the ST A HCRE BE A SR
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
. . =1
5. Financial Instruments 5. & TR
5a. Categories of financial instruments S5a. 4k T HREH
2009 2008
“ R “ETNE
HKS$°000 HK$’000
T#7x T#oT
Financial assets L R
Financial assets designated at EEB AL AP EFEZ
FVTPL M B & 8,125 5,463
Derivative financial instruments fiidE s m TR - 562
Loans and receivables (including BRI i K IE
cash and cash equivalents) (BB 4 KBl 45 H) 686,602 461,816
Available-for-sale financial assets AJ I A A 11,851 59,629
Financial liabilities Eof R =R
Derivative financial instruments i TE - 963
Other financial liabilities at LAt <5 B0 3 o A
amortised cost 200,092 224,094

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (continued)

5. &R T H m)

Sbh.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investments, financial assets at
FVTPL, foreign currency forward contracts, trade
receivables, bills receivable, other receivables, time
deposits and deposits placed with banks and a financial
institution, bank balances and cash, trade payables
and bills payable, other payables and borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk (interest rate
risk, currency risk and other price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. Management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner. The financial risk management objectives and
policies are consistently applied by the Group.

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate time deposits and deposits placed
with banks and a financial institution and fixed-rate
debt securities in available-for-sale investments.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances and
secured bank loans. The Group currently does not enter
into any interest rate swaps to convert floating rate
to fixed rate obligations. However, the management
closely monitors interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest rate change
exposure should the need arises.

Sh.

Yo 5 e 4 L H B B SR

ARLEE 2 TR T B ARt
HERE - ERE RN T EE
BB EE  BIWE SRR
JRE i S 4 > At i R K E
17 K B AT $RAT T 4 Tl A% 1 A7
HoMITHBR B EMNE S
W 2 S JE A SR 4 - LAl R AT AR K
KA %% 4w T B R &
B G B 5 o T Sk B B R S A
TE A6 T 8 m B () % R
B B R H A A A R B  fF
A JEL B S i B 4 JEL B o AH B 2
JEN B B An] A 5% 45 AL B 2 B
5 o 55 T RE T R N B P g R e
DT P % IR D A R b R U o 2
T8 il o A S I & R A0 M PR B S R
By 45 B AR % UK o

7 45 il B

EY N

A5 B A SE B RE WA KR A R AR
T SRAT S < P B A A 7 T AR o 4
BOE N E B REH AR A
- (B A1) 5 Ja g

A SR LA B B RS SR AT 55 47
ERAT A A 4 3R 8% Th) 3 O B B
< M R LB o AN 48 1B BLAE R A 3
Fr A8 53 o i 2 A0 2 E B
R -HE EHEgEESR
) 26 52 )y SR\ B PV M T BEIRF %
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (continued)

5. &R T H m)

Sbh.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis on the exposure to fair value
interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk are not
performed as the management consider the exposure to
these risks are insignificant.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign
currency sales and purchases, which exposes the Group
to foreign currency risk. Approximately 100% of the
Group’s sales are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities
making the sale.

The Group currently does not implement hedging
activity to hedge against foreign currency exposure.
However, the management closely monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (continued)

5. &R T H m)

Sbh.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

United States dollar (“USD”) Ew

Sh.

Yo 5 e 4 L H B R R (A )

iy 557 b, B ()

Rk (4

AR H > ASE [ DU R
Z BN E MR R MR
T

Liabilities Assets
£ 94

2009 2008 2009 2008
SRR CETAE CRBAE CEEARE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
F#rx T F#x T
24,890 31,087 655,546 445,874
3,453 5,534 1,444 2,560

Renminbi (“RMB”) NG

Assets and liabilities denominated in USD mainly
represents time deposits and deposits placed with
banks and a financial institutions, available-for-
sale investments, trade receivables/payables and
bills receivable/payable, while assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB mainly represented trade and
other payables/receivables held by the Group.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the exchange rate
fluctuations of USD and RMB against the functional
currency of respective group entities, which is either
HKD or RMB. As HKD is pegged to USD, the
exposure to fluctuations in exchange rate of HKD
against USD is considered insignificant and thus the
effect on group entities using HKD as their functional
currencies is not considered in the sensitivity analysis.

KRR 2 EE KA B ETE
S AT K~ A7 TS SRAT B 5 il A
o At ERE - B 5
BRK B B2 5 R % B Wi
/AT AR LA R ¥R 2
B LA A AR E A
Z AT, RE NS 5 MR ek T At
it T R I o

B SE 2T

A A ] R &% K o0 kN R FIE
S AR M e B W T A
IR 2 e 4 35 B Ja g o £ A s T
3% U O T R T M
By JE AN K > R T ¥ T
HEIMRERW L EHEN YR
lfr 48 A 50 2 J5E o A o 5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (continued)

5. &R T H m)

Sbh.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
to a 3% increase and decrease in functional currency
of respective group entities against the relevant
foreign currencies. 3% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 3% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive (negative) number below
indicates an increase (decrease) in profit where the
functional currencies of respective group entities
weakens 3% against the relevant currencies. For a 3%
strengthening of the functional currencies of respective
group entities against the relevant currencies, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit.

Sh.

Impact of USD

Yo 5 e B 4 L H B R R (A )

il 5 il B (4F)

BRI T ()

AR TR R E A 42 1 8 7 5 4 T
T T RE B W SO A B A1 BE R |
T EI3% 2 BURE o 3% /% 14 N
F8 E A BN B S A e
2 SRR > Sl A P R R
] RE A B A B 2 WA o URE J)
MrAE G AN R 2 R
SMEIEE > Sl A AR R A
DA W ME 2 22 39 52 Bl - T 31 IE 8
() R EMERRER
SO B AN I 53 9% > DL B B 1
G o i 254 EH D RE R
W5 S 1 B AW 5 3 9% - B 3 ik
i AR 25 A I 2 2

Impact of RMB

e 8t AR
2009 2008 2009 2008
I N e
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
T#L  THEE  TEL  TET
231 133 (60) (89)

AR R H

Profit or loss for the year

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (continued)

5. &R T H m)

Sbh.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The above is mainly attributable to the exposure to
outstanding receivables and payables at the year end.

Other price risk

The Group was exposed to other price risk through
its investments in structured foreign currency
forward contracts as at 31 March, 2008. However, as
theses forward contracts were terminated during the
year ended 31 March, 2009 and the corresponding
investment loss were disclosed as a subsequent event
in the other financial assets/liabilities footnote for the
year ended 31 March, 2008, the sensitivity analysis in
relation to these exposures is not performed.

The Group is also exposed to other price risk
through its investments in debt securities classified
as available-for-sale investments and designated at
FVTPL. The management considers the other price risk
is insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis on
such risk has been prepared. However, the management
will closely monitor such exposure and consider
hedging such exposure should the need arises.

Sh.

Yo 5 e B 4 L H B R R (A )

il 5 il B (4F)

R SE T (#H)

At T A A R R T 1
WK T e B At 2 T T 3 2 Ja g o

FAl 15 15 I B

AREEMPR _FENFE=H=+—
H B8 45 W A i 30 5 & T
TE 36 JEL Al (A% JL By o SR T > 5% 4
EPEHERBE _FFNF=
H=+—HIL2H, o phE =
“EEFNEZA=Z+—HIERH
Mo B 5 B R B A 4 R
OB B B R 18 R A UK
JEE 3 A o

A AR F I IR 45 ) RS SRR
FH 7 ] A o S AN B R 18 4
OV {EL R ST T S H A 6 A% R
Bax o B I 5 i 2 L At A A LB
A A B R - R A R B
e A5 AF O o e (R > B
JiE i % ) B 55 AL JL B A0 AE A R
B3 B 25 5 3 o JEL R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (coninued)

5. &R T H m)

Sbh.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations at 31 March, 2009 in relation to each
class of recognized financial assets is the carrying
amount of those assets as stated in the consolidated
balance sheet. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade receivables and the Group
has been largely dependent on a small number of
customers for a substantial portion of its business. The
top three customers represent over 77% of the trade
receivables and bills receivable at 31 March, 2009,
which contributed the Group’s concentration of credit
risk by geographical location in America and Europe.
The failure of these customers to make required
payment could have a substantial negative impact on
the Group’s profits and liquidity. In order to minimise
the credit risk, management of the Group has credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at each balance sheet date
to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank balances, liquid funds and debt
securities are limited because the counterparties are
reputable banks in Hong Kong or a financial institution
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables set out above, and liquid funds which
are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (continued)

5. &R T H m)

5b. Financial risk management objectives and Sb. o5 e AT P H BE B BOR (A )
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk it ) 5 <2 bR B
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group TE B T Y < g I - A A
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash W T AR A L R R A ) B
equivalents deemed adequate by the management G B B S R BB DA B A4
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the V] ) S5 T AL 4 3 R B
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management 4B U U Y Y R B o A P B
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings. AT E B 05 R L
The Group relies on bank borrowings as a source AR B AR SRATIE R A E B
of liquidity. As at 31 March, 2009, the Group had HERRE - R FEFNFEZA
available unutilised credit facilities of approximately =t—H > ALEE T Z R
HK$120,844,000 (2008: HK$123,437,000). F A5 B %) %5120,844,0009
g6 (= FF )\ 123,437,000%
JG) o
The following table details the Company’s remaining T RFF AN T 2 G A 6
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For G A JE T o R AT AR RS A
non-derivative financial liabilities, the table has been > N F AR BT B R AR
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of Bl (54 5 B n] o oK
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which HKZEAAMMER - FTRD
the Group can be required to pay them. The table 45 FLE I B v AR 4 o
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Liquidity tables B &K
Carrying
amount
Weighted Total at
average Less than 3 months Over undiscounted 31 March,
interest rate 3 month to 1 year 1year  cash flows 2009
“ERWE
T Afidse ZA=+—H
THAE  AR=EMN =MAE-4% 4Nk i A Z Wi i
% HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$"000 HKS$000
T#x T#x T#rx T#x T
2009
Financial liabilities at 4 £ i 85 i A
amortised cost
Trade payable and bills & 5 REF HUR &
payable JE £ 22 0% = 155,124 801 - 155,925 155,925
Other payables HOA £ 3R - 214,412 - = 24,412 24,412
Secured bank loans AR AT B
- variable rate -%B 1.69 3,402 8,310 8,356 20,068 19,755
182,938 9,111 8,356 200,405 200,092
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 e ELIFE=H=+—H I FF
5. Financial Instruments (continued) 5. @R TH
5b. Financial risk management objectives and Sb. o5 B AT P H OBE B BOR (A )
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) i ) B <2 bR B ()
Liquidity tables (Continued) B E K (FE)
Carrying
amount
Weighted Total at
average Less than 3 months Over  undiscounted 31 March,
interest rate 3 month to | year 1 year cash flows 2008
“FENE
ki =faA KrEBE =A=1+—H

THHE  SREMA E-£ —ENE RESE ZKREE
%  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000
T# T T T T#7

2008
Financial liabilities at 47 £ 5% $ 8 A&

amortised cost
Trade payable and bills & 5 1 3H &

payable JE T 5 4% = 162,110 - - 162,110 162,110
Other payables At 5 30R - 20,308 8,482 - 28,790 28,790
Secured bank loans AR RS

- variable rate -%8 3.05 4418 9,829 20,423 34,670 33,194

186,836 18,311 20,423 225,570 224,094

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

5. Financial Instruments (continued)

i MW

BE_FFAF = =1 —H I

»

(7

5. &R T H m)

Sc.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

- the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively; and

- the fair value of other financial assets and
financial liabilities (excluding derivative financial
instruments) are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices from
observable current market transactions and dealer
quotes for similar instruments.

The Group’s available-for-sale investments and other
financial assets/liabilities are measured at fair value
as detailed in notes 16 and 17. The directors consider
that the carrying amounts of all other financial assets
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in
the consolidated financial statements approximate their
values.

5c.

A
S I S AR 2 N TE
EAF

— M EE XA MR
HEAG K T AR A B AT B i
L B T 35 52 B 2 I A
R 2 A {E 50 7l BA 2 2% i
Wl 5 WA LR AR E
K

- H BB E A L B A R
2 HE (AR AT A 4
TH) 8 kA g T 5 %2
Zy B DA BE B 8 L )
Br s A 2 — N i 2 B A
158 S E

A% 55 [ 2 n] Ak B R R At B
HEE/BETIATHEEE
FEIE R M EE 165217 - B LA
JiA G B B ik % DA 8 B AS R Bk
2 A HoAh B M B AR
2 B T (B B (B A 5 o

Annual Report 2008/2009
—2g\EE-FFEER 67



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

6. Business and Geographical
Segments

6. &5 S Ml 7 F

Geographical segments

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised
into three major geographical segments based on the
destination of shipment of products. These segments are
the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment
information.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenues and
results by geographical market, irrespective of the origin of
the goods:

3 1k 2y 4

A 55 1B 265 il [ ) 23 A3 A T 2
73 58 > LAE fi 2 i 28 1 M 77y 2 YE
e S o A B 20 TR T AR AR T B
TR o

PATR T A 4 42 3t i T 35 2 %8 2690 K
SERUEHRL E M ARIBAE B

Consolidated Income Statement BT A
Year ended 31 March, 2009 HE_EEENF=H=+1+—H
Europe America Asia Others Consolidated
(¢ XN ol ot b i e
HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000
T#x T#x T#x T#x T#x
(Note) (Note)
(Hf7t) (Hit)
Revenue BER 1,060,763 359,249 401,370 48147 1,869,529
Segment result LR 105,030 38,548 39,989 5,822 189,389
Net investment loss BE R 9,547
Decrease in fair value of BREWEAFHED
an investment property (700)
Finance costs W & A (830)
Unallocated corporate expenses OB A B (47,431)
Profit before tax BB R i A1 130,881
Income tax expense P #5384 B 5 (23,943)
Profit for the year AR U A 106,938
Note:  Segment revenue included in Asia and Others represent BitaE: BN B A st [ 2 4 4 2

revenue from destination of shipment of products which
individually contribute less than 10% of total revenue of
the Group.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March, 2009

6. Business and Geographical
Segments (Continued)

6. TG I Hb I Ay ER o)

Geographical segments (Continued)
Consolidated Balance Sheet
At 31 March, 2009

b oy (AH)
o HEA MR
HE-BENFE=ZH="+—H

Europe America Asia Others Consolidated
(¢ ZH ol Jef i i e
HKS$'000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$°000
T#x T#x T#r T#x T#x
ASSETS 3
Segment assets e E 8,125 99,401 86,722 13,908 418,156
Other segment assets (Note /) HAhr WG (M) 145,705
Unallocated corporate assets P WAV 472,335
Consolidated total assets SEA MG E 1,036,196
LIABILITIES i
Segment liabilities 7 88,539 41,829 33,476 5,695 169,539
Unallocated corporate liabilities KA AE 245,112
Consolidated total liabilities SAMEARE 414,651
Note 1: Other segment assets represent assets for production Mttt - ﬁéﬁi’ﬁ?%ﬁg‘g BE’E{EH A EFIE R
which cannot be allocated by destination of shipment of %/’ g ﬁftﬁ A HE LA ,ﬁ\iﬂ’i;ﬁ H E,J
products as in the opinion of the directors, there is no iy J‘}FE o M AT — B Y
appropriate basis on which allocation can be made. T LGB
Other Information HAl 7 HF

Year ended 31 March, 2009 #HEZELNFEH=1+—H

Europe America Asia Others Unallocated Consolidated

¢ | Ed) | i Al 3l gk P B

HK$’000  HEK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000

T#x T#x T#r T#x T#x T#x

Capital additions A 4,887 1,178 994 298 45,916 53273

Depreciation ik 31 863 852 147 28,057 33,040
Write-off of property, LE )3

plant and equipment Bt 6,873 1,453 1,265 415 2 10,008

Annual Report 2008/2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 e ELIFE=H=+—H I FF
6. Business and Geographical 6. ZENS I HD I 43 B )
Segments (Continued)
Geographical segments (Continued) Mol 4y 3 (A7)
Consolidated Income Statement BRI
Year ended 31 March, 2008 #HEEFENFE=H=1—H
Europe America Asia Others ~ Consolidated
el E| | Hofth i [ =54

HK$000 HKS$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
Tk T Fi# T T
(Note) (Note)
(Wit (Hfit)

Revenue HEH 897,473 266,145 342,372 41,835 1,547,825
Segment result I ER 58,564 17,962 22,855 2,912 102,293
Net investment income BB T 11,276
Increase in fair value of
an investment property BB 3N 4,960
Finance costs 1 5 % R (1,052)
Unallocated corporate expenses AL A B3 (42,720)
Profit before tax i i 1 74,757
Income tax expense P #5388 B 5 (9,385)
Profit for the year A B i A1 64,872
Note:  Segment revenue included in Asia and Others represent BitaE e BRI B At [ 4 4 2
revenue from destination of shipment of products which R B M A B Y b 454 42 AR
individually contribute less than 10% of total revenue of EEBALI0% °
the Group.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 e ELIFE=H=+—H I FF
6. Business and Geographical 6. B MR D )
Segments (Continued)
Geographical segments (Continued) Mol 4y 3 (A7)
Consolidated Balance Sheet BEHAEARE
At 31 March, 2008 B ZEENFE=ZH=4—H
Europe America Asia Others ~ Consolidated
el E| | Hofth i [ =54

HKS'000  HKS$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000
Tk Tt Tk Tt Tk

ASSETS i
Segment assets N EE 279,810 82,956 74,279 14,305 451,350
Other segment assets (Note 1) HAHEE (M) 162,220
Unallocated corporate assets N WA 302,890
Consolidated total assets ey N g3 916,460
LIABILITIES fifk
Segment liabilities 7 108,655 36,598 25,648 5,584 176,485
Unallocated corporate liabilities p Vil WANEIRER 199,148
Consolidated total liabilities GEMARE 375,633
Note 1: Other segment assets represent assets for production BitaEL - HoAt 4330 aE TS 48 DA AE E R
which cannot be allocated by destination of shipment of FE o B SR A AN fE DAL R E Y
products as in the opinion of the directors, there is no i 43 e - SI7 3R A — AIE 28 Y L
appropriate basis on which allocation can be made. T LA o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements A
For the year ended 31 March, 2009 59 258S

6. EB MR AP )

6. Business and Geographical
Segments (Continued)

W5} B (47)
B
HE-FENFEZA=A—H

Geographical segments (Continued)
Other Information
Year ended 31 March, 2008

Europe America Asia Others  Unallocated ~ Consolidated

B M i HAt b & AR we

HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$°000 HKS$'000

T T Tk T#T T T

Capital additions BARKE 7,393 1,373 1,785 317 83,344 94212

Depreciation i 10,469 2379 2759 137 U2 10265
Write-off of property, ES:

plant and equipment Bt 1,254 157 243 60 29 1,743

RBEFEFNFER _FENF=H
=t — R IR 8RR 0 5 EE
MR T {6 B ) 36 ~ WS e el 2 S L 8
3 T B A PR A H I o

Substantially all of the carrying amount of segment assets
and additions to property, plant and equipment, for both
years were located or utilised in the PRC.

e ¥igt

S5 ORI R A W 3B 4 R AE AT 43
B> R A 42 B 2 7 SE R I KR S AR
1 ol e T A K B TR AR E B T A
L 7 A 4R ) fE — SE 5 40 R o

Business segments

No analysis of financial information by business segment
is presented as all the Group’s revenue and trading results
are generated from the manufacture and sale of household
electrical appliances representing the sole business segment
of the Group.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements S5 W B

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 HE_FFNFE=H="1—HIFE

7. Investment and other (loss) gain on 7. T G N HAB R E

(=
Investment 518) B R
2009 2008
“ERNIAE ZERE N
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#x T# T
Interest on bank deposits SRAT 7 2R B 1,173 4,693
Interest on debt securities 7 w5 25 ) B, 1,821 1,347
Net (loss) gain on foreign currency S s A S G A 2
forward contracts (K18 2 M) 7 48 (9,390) 5,142
Net (loss) gain on disposal of available- AR E (EHE)
for-sale investments T R 1 AH (2,733) 78
Net (loss) gain on financial assets 7R Rt RS TE
designated at FVTPL A B E
(J18) 22 H1) 35 (418) 16
9,547 11,276
Annual Report 2008/2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

. ’ ’ == (=
8. Directors’ and Employees 8. I K EM &
Emoluments
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) HFEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight CATEEN T84 ( —FE /4
(2008: eight) directors were as follows: 8% ) EH S HZM & T -
For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BE_FZNME=H=1+—HIL
AR
Ms. Ms. Professor
Mr. Mr.  Cheung  Cheung Mr. M. Lai Lo  Dr. Chan
Cheung Cheung Lai Chun,  Lai See, Cheung  Ah Ming, Chung How Total
Lun  Shu Wan Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau Chun 2009
R OWBE O REZ O REN RE O OBEN OERK WIS
Sk Kk %t %t Sk Bk /6 i bk
HK$000  HKS$'000  HK$V00  HK$000 HK$W00 HK$000 HK$W00  HKS$'000  HK$000
Fi#x  FHL  TFEL  TFHEC  THEL THEL TéELC THEL TEx
Fees g - - - - - 100 - - 100
Other emoluments H A4
Salaries and ¥4 B AR
other benefits 2,741 2,419 1,297 1,533 1242 - - - 9,232
Bonus (note) TEAL () 1,113 5,988 974 960 964 - - - 9,999
Retirement benefits R AR B 5
scheme contributions - 244 132 150 120 - - - 646
Total emoluments i 4% 3,854 8,651 2,403 2,643 2,326 100 - - 19,977
For the year ended 31 March, 2008 RE_ZFENE=H=1T—HIL
AR
Ms. Ms. Professor
Mr. Mr. Cheung Cheung Mr. Mr. Lai Lo  Dr Chan
Cheung Cheung  Lai Chun, Lai See, Cheung  Ah Ming, Chung How Total
Lun  ShuWan Maggie Sophie Pui Leon Mau Chun 2008
Ry REE REZ O REN RE O OREH ERR BER
fetk bt Lt Tt bt bt iz it b
HK$000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS$000
Fr  T#Er T FEc TEr  TEr T TErD TEr
Fees ik = = = - = 100 = = 100
Other emoluments H i 4
Salaries and # 4 LA A
other benefits 2,608 2,339 1,186 1,436 1,067 - - - 8,036
Bonus (note) e (M) 1,024 4,255 657 795 546 - - - 7277
Retirement benefits R AR
scheme contributions - 231 116 143 107 - - - 597
Total emoluments LR 3.632 6,825 1,959 2,374 1,720 100 - - 16,610

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements B

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 SR S

8. Directors’ and Employees’ 8. THIF MAE B M a0
Emoluments (continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ #HFEME (4)

Professor Lo Chung Mau waived his fees of
HK$100,000 (2008: HK$100,000) for the year ended
31 March, 2009. Dr. Chan How Chun waived her fees
of HK$100,000 (2008: HK$100,000) for the year
ended 31 March, 2009. No other director waived any
emoluments for both year.

Note: The performance related incentive payment is
determined with reference to the performance of the
individual and the Group.

(b) Employees’ emoluments (b)
The five highest paid individuals in the Group in 2009
and 2008 were all directors of the Company and details
of their emoluments are included in (a) above.

HWRERBERREE ZFFT N
E£=ZH =+ —H 1k EHE
4:100,0008 7T ( B & )4
100,00075 7T ) © PR 2 5 18 £ 4 #
2 OBTAE=ZH=+—HILK
FHA14:100,0008 70 ( ~FF N
41 100,000% 70 ) o R A HAh #
HOR B S WA A o

BifaE - B B 4 B A8 < T AR 4R R
Nt B SR MR BLPRE

D L

REFPR —FFNERLFFN
A TR T A3 B i 7 < A AR AN 3
BARNFZES K& EHE

T b 3L (a) TH 1 5% o
/E[ AJ
9. Income Tax Expense 9. Fr15Hi b =X
2009 2008
e 225 ZEFFNF
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T #C T T
The charge comprises: ol JH S A4
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at A VR AR I AR A R
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated At 3 ) 4% B 16.5%
assessable profits (ZFFENE17.5%)
G 2
Current year ARAE 12,242 6,222
(Over) underprovision in prior years WA BB A2
it (73) 143
12,169 6,365
The PRC enterprise income tax calculated [ 11> 3 ir {3 B T3 AR 45 45 B
at the prevailing rate R HE R 2 B BLREHE 12,672 4,054
Deferred tax (note 23): AESERLIA (B §E23) ¢
Current year A (438) (534)
Attributable to a change in tax rate PR ol 2R A ) 5| 3K (460) -
23,943 9,885
Annual Report 2008/2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 #HE _EBENFE=H="+—HIFFEE

Income Tax Expense (continued)

Jihr 45 B B =2 )

On 26 June, 2008, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced corporate
profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year
of assessment 2008/2009. Therefore, Hong Kong Profits
Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) of the estimated
assessable profit for the year.

For both years, the profit of certain subsidiaries are subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax on a 50:50 apportionment basis.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC were eligible
for certain tax holiday and concessions as an export oriented
enterprise for the year ended 31 March, 2008. Under the
tax holiday, certain Group’s PRC subsidiaries are exempted
from foreign enterprise income tax for two years starting
from its first profit-making year, followed by a 50%
reduction for the next three years. On 16 March, 2007, the
PRC promulgated the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income
Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No. 63 of the President
of the PRC. On 6 December, 2007, the State Council of
the PRC issued Implementation Regulation of the New
Law. Under the New Law and Implementation Regulation
effective from 1 January, 2008, the 50% tax reduction
incentive provided to export oriented enterprise has been
removed. Starting from 1 January, 2008, the statutory
enterprise income tax rate of these subsidiaries became 25%
as the previous tax holiday and concessions was expired.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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ATEENEANHZHNH > FHET
e T AFE IR AR L
A AR AGBB R H17.5% A K=
16.5%> B ~ZFE )N/ BEJERB
AERE AR TR > A WS AN AR I H4E I
s ERBL 2 ] 16.5% ( & & )\ 4E
17.5% ) 515 -

SRR CRBENRDEEN
FEUIE WA TR0 MR A T 2
H T AR 4% A A 45 B 4250:50 B 9] 32
fif o

AEMPERE _FZNF=H=1—
H LB 7 27 B g 2 ] A ] 5 A
B A ] B — SR A
U5 A B Y 3 R0 50 1 A 4% 1 W AR
Bl o 0 Ho AR 2 = S A W B %
o —ZFELE=ZH+NHHE
MR8 2 AR 0 [ ) % 3 2635
A B TR RS (TRl ]) -
W EELETHAANH PEEBE
e o B B AN A o th TN
E— H— H R MR Bk AR it A
HI 8 FANERERNEBRERCHER
B o th = F T /N\4FE—H—H B Bk
DAAE I B B B RIS REE B 3% 5%
W JES > 7] 2 v A T AR B A 25% ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

9. Income Tax Expense (continued)

9. S8 BH 32 (a)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

A JIE 22 50 TR AT il RT3 R AR i R

before tax per the consolidated income statement as follows: TR 2 % B Wi v A G
2009 2008
—REBMAE —EFNE
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#x Tt or
Profit before tax o3 5 il e A1) 130,881 74,757
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 7 5 Fll 15 Bl % Bl % 16.5%
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) (ZEENFE17.5%) 21,595 13,082
Tax effect of income that is not taxable for #EZH 4Bl 2 Wit A 5 FE S Bl
tax purpose Tt 1] 5 22 1,218) (839)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AT 1 2 B S 3 RE ARG
deductible for tax purpose Tt ) 5 22 1,569 833
Tax effect of offshore manufacturing e 7 A B i 2 R 4
profits on 50:50 apportionment basis 50:50 b 5] 32 A5k 4 i JH
% (1,480) (2,190)
Effect of different tax rates in the PRC 28 i R B AN [] A R
Z 5 3,084 (346)
(Over) underprovision in prior years AR R A 2 B (73) 143
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses 81 ) 2 T A e R Y B I s 1
previously not recognized -2 (356) (643)
Decrease in opening deferred tax liability % Ff B % i 5| A W)
resulting from a decrease in applicable AR S A TE 5 A I D
tax rate (460) —
Withholding tax on undistributed earnings A< %3 Bt & 1] 2 TH 0 8L 986 =
Others HoAth 296 (155)
Tax charge for the year A AF BB TE S 23,943 9,885
Annual Report 2008/2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March, 2009

10. Profit for the Year

10. 4 4F B i Al

11.

2009 2008
“ERAAE ZEE)NFE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#C T T
Profit for the year has been arrived at AAE R i A E N ER (FEA)
after charging (crediting): A AT
Staff salaries and allowances BT P R i R 227,449 208,015
Contributions to retirement benefits EX N R Y
schemes, net of forfeited amount of 0Bk B % Il 2 A 3k40,000
HK$40,000 (2008: HK$38,000) ot (ZFE /4
38,0007 7T) 5,865 18,382
Total staff costs, including directors’ ME T HA (A4 #ESH
emoluments Pl 45 ) 233,314 226,397
Release of prepaid lease payments fige I LA AHL B R 0E 686 716
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B R N 4 2,090 2,080
Depreciation of property, plant and W3~ RS K s A 8
equipment 33,040 40,265
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, B W B2
plant and equipment (ZA) k518 (296) 2,203
Write-off of property, S ERY &L
plant and equipment 10,008 1,743
Net foreign exchange losses FEE b, s 15 ¥ % 3,698 4,092
(Reversal of) provision for impairment of & & %) HR W (A (#E[1])
trade receivables Ee i (405) 223

Dividends

11. B &

HEERRE®RE " TEHE=A
=+—HIEFEERMBRL > &2
il (2B ZT AR 6HEAL) o MR IR %
2 A B BB BUA A N U Bk
AT 2 BERURAE R B HbE S 3R
FEENENLA—HIRMN TR FEN
FONHFILH ZHA N R R4 2
JBEH

A final dividend of HK12 cents (2008: HK6 cents) per share
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The final dividend will be paid on 1 September,
2009 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 19 August, 2009.

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BE_FFENF=H="1—HILFE
. us
12. Earnings Per Share 12. % & &1 ]
The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on FREARMZFEIIRBELUTE
the following data: w:
2009 2008
“ERIAE o AN 2
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#7x T# T
Earnings for the purpose of basic earnings 3 45 I 54 2 F| 1 5 2
per share B A 106,938 64,872
JBe B BE
Number of shares
2009 2008
“EFILE e YIS
000 000
T T
Number of ordinary shares for the purpose &5 Bt ZE A B | 1l 5 2
of basic earnings per share gubidiidlis 4= 335,433 335,433
No diluted earnings per share has been presented for both B E R A ST 2 S
years as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue. Ji& » WO SN 3R A 51 A i 4 R o

Annual Report 2008/2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements LA WBs il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BeE —EFNFE=H =1 —HIFE
JL 1 )
13. Investment Property 13. &M
HK$°000
T#T
FAIR VALUE A PAE
At 1 April, 2007 WEFEELFEMA—H 4,540
Change in fair value recognized in O (B 5 ) R 55 G i AR R ERR
the consolidated income statement 4,960
At 31 March, 2008 and 1 April, 2008 AEENFEZA=+—HK
MHA—H 9,500
Change in fair value recognized in the OB 5 ) A 55 G R A R E R
consolidated income statement (700)
At 31 March, 2009 W oEENFE=ZH=+—H 8,800
The fair value of the Group’s investment property at 31 W ZEENFERFEZNEZNA
March, 2009 and 2008 have been arrived at on the basis of =t+—H AREHBZLEWENLATHEH
a valuation carried out on that date by RHL Appraisal Ltd., HH 18 7 B ZE A S A (B BT K R AT RE(E
independent qualified professional valuers not connected B ) PR 2 m) AT EEAG o K A AT REE
with the Group. RHL Appraisal Ltd. has appropriate R B A BR 2 W) A7 R B A SR
qualifications and recent experiences in the valuation of My [ 2 ) 36 A AT I A8 B o A 9 AR B8
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation T 35 2 BUATAE M 17 A 7] 3t [ B A A 4
was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction 170
prices for similar properties in the same locations and
conditions.
The investment property is situated in Hong Kong and held BeE WA R B A R AR
under a long lease. It was not rented out under an operating o A —FBFZNF=HA=1+—H > &Y
lease as at 31 March, 2009. KBABEMLY -

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 HE_FFNF=H="1—HILFE
. ) J 291
14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. ) 2 ~ W5 M st
Furniture,
Factory  Plantand fixtures and Moulds Motor Construction
Buildings  buildings  machinery  equipment  and tools vehicles  in progress Total

LUT {8
By ThEBE RH Rt BRTH o ERIR it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS0O0  HKSUOD  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000
Fit it Tit Titr Tit it Tt Titr

COST WA
At 1 April, 2007 REZZZLEMA—H 4374 68,724 168,999 53,120 101,780 9,656 1,756 408,409
Exchange adjustments SMEE R - 2,089 11,550 2,963 125 782 1,001 18,510
Additions hE - 4,650 51,209 5,687 10,879 1,031 20756 94212
Disposals/write-off (Note) =ye U0 - = (313) (200 (25522) (991) = (27,026)
At31 March, 2008 and REFFNEZR=F-H
1 April, 2008 kmA—H 4374 75,463 231,445 61,570 87,262 10478 23,513 494,105
Exchange adjustments ShE % - 31 7,361 1,088 14 (417) 618 8,985
Additions HE - - 5330 6,746 7357 2,792 31,048 53073
Disposals/write-off (Note) ikve () - - (622) (830) (22,359) (2,106) = (25917)
At31 March, 2009 REZZZNEZR=F—H 4374 75,784 243,514 68,574 7,274 10,747 55,179 530,446
DEPRECIATION fith
At 1 April, 2007 REZZFZLELA—H 3,865 23839 130,129 45,955 73,092 5,149 = 282,229
Exchange adjustments SME R - 275 6,686 2,384 119 048 - 10,112
Provided for the year AR 175 2,894 14879 4551 16,106 1,660 - 40,265
Eliminated on disposalsfwrite-off i/ #ERRF K44
(Note) (Wit) = = (255) (135) (16915) (898) = (18.203)
At31 March, 2008 and REFFNEZR=F—H
1 April, 2008 KmA—H 4040 27,008 151,439 50,755 72,602 6,559 = 314,403
Exchange adjustments ShEH % = 49 7,061 1,049 14 (433) - 7,738
Provided for the year A 175 3,027 18,994 4,182 5,002 1,660 - 33,040
Eliminated on disposals/write-off 18 /#FR R4 5
(Note) (W7t - - (577) (816) (10,112) (1,884) = (13.389)
At31 March, 2009 REZZZNE=R=1—H 4215 30,084 176917 57,170 67,506 5,900 - 341,792
CARRYING VALUES Je i £
At 31 March, 2009 REZFNE=A=1—H 159 45,700 66,597 11404 4,768 4847 55,179 188,654
At 31 March, 2008 REZZRNF=ZA=1—H 334 48,455 80,006 8815 14,660 3919 23,513 179,702
Note: During the year ended 31 March, 2009, approximately Mat: REE _EENLE=H=+—H
HK$10 million (2008: HK$1.7 million) of mould assets were 1k > #1{E10,000,000% 70 2 18 H &
written off as the management expects sales orders arises FEE R > 45 HE R TE A% 4 %E\- % E
from these moulds will decrease significantly due to the SR T AL R 4 < VA IR 2
financial tsunami. KM kD o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 HE_FFNF=H="1—HILFE
. > 0 =JL =
14. Property, Plant and Equipment 14. Y %€ ~ Bk 5 B st oo
(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are Rk TR R R 2 T T
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per U NI FERERIEFE
annum:
Buildings and factory buildings K TR 2 4%
Plant and machinery T I % A B b 2% 15%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment SO -9 & 20 — 33'3%
Moulds and tools B A K TR 20 - 33'3%
Motor vehicles bl A 20%
The carrying value of buildings and factory buildings Wy 2 J T g 26 2 AR T (B AL 9
comprises:
2009 2008
“EERAE —ERENE
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#7x T T

Buildings situated in Hong Kong under iR Fdsz RIHEY ¥
long lease 159 334

Factory buildings situated outside Hong i it 75 s A b 2 Tk ¥ 36
Kong under:

Long lease R A 2,715 2,986
Medium-term lease HRFH A 42,985 45,469
45,859 48,789

Allan International Holdings Limited

82 wiimm g A R AR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 HE_FFNF=H="1—HILFE
0 Y ESlET
15. Prepaid Lease Payments 15. T H & 3A
2009 2008
e 2 RS ZEE)NFE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#x T T
The Group’s prepaid lease payments £ B TR A A B AL A
comprise:
Leasehold land held on long lease sz RIHHE i
in Hong Kong 9,404 9,415
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong: A7 s DA AN FE B b
Medium term lease FR LAY 28,971 29,224
Long lease R A 4,419 4,499
33,390 33,723
Total HEH 42,794 43,138
Analysed for reporting purposes as: VR % 38 2 40 7
Non-current assets IE I B G = 42,040 42,392
Current assets i B 754 746
42,794 43,138
The Group is in the process of obtaining the land use rights 2 B2 ) 1E TE SR SHEUAL A R A S —
certificate for a medium-term leasehold land outside Hong i BAH % 2 FH 8 -t 2 b (sl RE
Kong, which the carrying value was HK$22,763,000 (2008: i KR —FFNFE=HA=1+—HZ
HK$22,833,000) as at 31 March, 2009. M THI {EL £522,763,000% 7T ( —F F )\

4F 1 22,833,000% 75 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 B E B ENFE=H =+—HIFFEEF
. N
16. Available-for-sale Investments 16. Al E R E
Available-for-sale investments comprise: AR 2 AL
2009 2008
e 2 P2 e YAND
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
T#x T T
Unlisted securities: LT Ry
Debt securities B3k 25 8,454 55,879
Club debentures & fE 3,397 3,750
Total 4% 11,851 59,629
Analysed for reporting purposes as: VeI & 2 20 #
Non-current assets IE i By & = 8,417 55,731
Current assets B 3,434 3,898
11,851 59,629
The above unlisted securities represent investments in DL b JE BT 2 B By B R RS
unlisted debt securities and club debentures issued by private AR KRG ESR AN
entities. They are stated at fair value, which have been b Ay o $2 AT {E A MR - AR E
determined by reference to prices provided by counterparty B B SRR T 5 22 5 A HEAE 2
financial institution or recent arm’s length market F o “EENFE=HA=Z1+—H EH
transactions. As at 31 March, 2009, the debt securities Al 75 2 ) F2 DL ] g F) 2 a8 A R 5t
carry interest either at fixed rate or variable rates, which S DAt T 35 48 BOm B B A R AE
is reference to other market index plus a fixed rate. The 2% AR5 EF3.8% (ZFX
effective interest rate is 3.8% (2008: 2.6%) per annum. The INAE 12.6% ) ° WA AEHSGE S5 2 I 2 A
original maturity of these debt securities ranges from one H—F 2 LHEAE (ZFF)NF:
year to seven years (2008: from one to eight years). H—F 2 /\4FE) -

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

17. Other Financial Assets/Liabilities 17. FoAth B B g%/ﬁ &

Current Non-current
2009 2008 2009 2008

ZRRAF ZEFTAF ZRRAF ZFTAF
HK$000  HK$'000  HKS$’000  HKS$'000
T#%x T T#7x FiBT

Other financial assets I il B 5 % e
Derivatives (not under AL T H
hedge accounting) (A8 A B b & 5l )
Foreign currency forward S A
contracts (Note 1) (MtaE1) - 562 - -

Financial assets designated & ¥ 25 3% A E{i
at fair value through profit  #}52 W% & i
or loss (FVTPL) (Note 2) (ft7E2) 3,858 = 4,267 5,463

Other financial liabilities il 1A %5 A

Derivatives (not under 4w ]

hedge accounting) (A A B g5)
Foreign currency forward Sz 5 4

contracts (Note 1) (ftaE1) - 963 - -
Note I: Kratn :

These represented three structured foreign currency forward
contracts entered by the Group with the banks which require no
initial net investment. The total notional amounts of these contracts
were USD3,000,000 and the settlement amounts of these contracts
were determined on predetermined formula with the banks with
reference to: 1) the spot rate of RMB/USD or 2) the interest rate
spread between a long term and a short term Euro or GBP London
Interbank Offered Rates. In additions, there is a gearing factor
within these contracts which could potentially double their notional
amount. During the year ended 31 March, 2009, all three contracts
were settled and the Group has incurred a net investment loss of
approximately HK$9,390,000 (Note 7).

F AN 42 ) BLER AT RT 57 2 = 03I S KR E ) A
W FE SN R A A SR
#2455 588 53,000,000 78 > 1M 8% 55 A
K2 A3 AR T R BLARAT 2 5 DL T T ST 1
ERHRREE - DARBE /2T B A E
R 2) = 0 I s W R T B0 5 DA A SR AT
[F T B 2B 5T R R > WE A &H
FE R PR R > AT BEB M S — 5 - R E
TEENE=ZA=+—H1 > =HELHY
EFE MALBECEAREREETHEN
9,390,000%5 7T ( Mt i£7) -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

17. Other Financial Assets/Liabilities

(Continued)

I

B 17 A5 AN S B ik

HE—FEAE = =1 — A I

17. HoAtL BA 85 & A A 1R

(%)

18.

Note 2:

These represent unlisted debt investments redeemable upon
maturity ranging from May 2009 to July 2012 with the total
principal amounts of USD1,100,000. The return of interest of
these debt investments are linked to specific commodity indexes
such as biofuels and agriculture products. As these investments are
contracts containing embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 Financial
Instructments: Recognition and Measurement permits the entire
hybird contract to be designated as financial asset at FVTPL. The
directors intended to hold these investments to their maturities
therefore they are classified as current or non-current assets
according to their maturity dates.

The above financial instruments are measured at fair value at
balance sheet date.

Inventories

Raw materials JE b1 L
Work in progress TER M
Finished goods B R

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Mtat2 :

AR EENERAE -F— 4L
H B 1) e I ] T A 4 4858 5 1,100,00055 7T
ZHEMEBRE - ZEEF LEZHE
[F1] 3 LA S 7 i O A ) AR T R ZE AR
B ZEREMRERANSMETRZ A
)z —H 0y > R A s & 5l UE Bl 253955 4 il
TH:ERLRERE EFEWIRELIEE
BB MB RN T EFI L M EE - &
HABFAZSREZIMAE - BGZE®R
B4y T B BT T

bR TR S B DAFE

=

El‘l_k«
feim

2009 2008
ZRZNAE e
HK$°000 HK$ 000
T # 7 F i T
18,576 72,040
12,558 23,118
26,953 37,744
58,087 132,902




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

19. Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables

19. E W & 5 B 2 I e i
= H At FE U R

Trade receivables JRE W B2 5 W K
Bills receivable JHRE A 2
Less: allowance for doubtful debts i ¢ R R AR
Other receivables il JRE WAz R TR

The Group maintains defined credit period of up to 90 days.
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables and
bills receivable net of allowance for doubtful debts at the
reporting date:

0 — 90 days 0-90H
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H

Before accepting any new customer, the Group has assessed
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. In addition, the Group reviews the
repayment history of receivables by each customer with
reference to the payment terms stated in contracts to
determine the recoverability of a trade receivable. In the
opinion of the directors, the trade and bill receivables that
are not past due nor impaired were of good credit quality at
the balance sheet date.

2009 2008
ZRBHAE ZEBE)NAF
HKS$°000 HKS$°000
T T
296,579 215,692
53,639 74,736

- (405)

350,218 290,023
25,270 20,910
375,488 310,933

7 45 [ B AL RS B Eo0 K - DATR
B B R 3k M JRE A 22 4 (i J 2R
IR 18 ) RS H 2 IR EY 447 -

2009 2008
SRRAE CEFAR
HKS$000 HKS$°000
T # 7 T i#5 7T
350,071 287,700

147 2,323

350,218 290,023

TS B AR AT AR % 5 R > AN 4R I 2 RTA
BEEF 2 ERERRIEEF RER
FEIRAEH - LA AR B E S M Pt 2
BESCE ¢ SR IRkt 3/ 1¢ e P
AL Bk > DA AE M WO B MR Ak 2 T i [ml
e REEAMEKRER EFGRA
R B R 7 4 3 (L 2 R i B R R B
SRR EEERR-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

19. Trade Receivables and Bills
Receivable/Other Receivables

(Continued)

19. E W & 5 B 2 I e i
= H At FE U R

(#)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$77,672,000 (2008:
HK$31,800,000) which are past due at the reporting date for
which the Group has not provided for impairment loss as
there has not been significant change in credit quality and
the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired:

0 - 90 days 0-90H
91 — 120 days 91 - 120H
Total R

The Company has provided fully for all receivables which
are over 180 days because historical experience is such that
receivables are generally not recoverable.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

Balance at beginning of the year AR & R
Impairment losses reversed
Impairment losses recognized on

receivables

Balance at end of the year

Allan International Holdings Limited
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A EY TV E /LRI RN, 7
. ik ) A T 1L Js 4R

A% 52 E I B 5 IR KB IR T (E
& 3£77,672,000% 56 ( T T U4
31,800,000%5 G ) 2 JEE YL B 2K > 7% ik 3K
AR H B2 3 E I 2 1 )
B FEEE R W% =Rk
[Fi] IR > 25 i % s T AT g [ o A 42 [E Sl
4 5% 5 B TE R A AT AT ST A

. 1) S0 Sl 90 3 2 R A B2 5 kTR R

B nr
2009 2008
e 2 S “EERNE
HK$°000 HKS$°000
T#x T#T
77,525 29,477
147 2,323
77,672 31,800

P 1E KEBR > i ) A 180K Z ME LK
TE 28 H A AT (] > A 2% ) BT 3 A 4
A AR SELATE A A

SN 2 22 90
2009 2008
SERRRE CFEAR
HKS$’000 HK$°000
TR T
405 182
(405) -
= 223
- 405




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BE _FENF=H="1—HILFE
. . 577 E
19. Trade Receivables and Bills 19. FE Uk 2l 3k S R ik
. . B x/,
Receivable/Other Receivables L% Y% Y& ¢
(Continued) (%)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts R 2 B (4F)
(Continued)
Included in the allowance for doubtful debts as at 31 March, W _EENE=H=1+—"H 5 AR
2008 were individually impaired trade receivables with an F 3 A 2 1R I L e (B B WA IR K &5 B
aggregate balance of HK$405,000 which had delinquent in F£405,000% 70 E # K AE T o A28 A3l
payments. The Group did not hold any collateral over these 3l 52 5 S B AR A AT R AT o o
balances.
7S B (30 NI A g HL Al B SR L A A A A
The Group does not hold any collateral over other HECAH o B o R ICKRC Bk R AL X S
receivables. The Group has not provided for impairment loss FKTE AT [m] > A A NI R el % 5 K
as the directors assessed that the balance will be recovered T 1 H Uk A e 4R 1A o

base on their settlement records.

o . - e +/, > G=
20. Time Deposits and Deposits 20. 7& W AF ORI AF iR SR AT
; 3 5 = > £/,
placed with Banks and a Financial B4z R B 2 A7k
Institution/Bank Balances and Cash RAT BL I 5 &5 17
(a) Time deposits and deposits placed with banks (a) WA AAE S BT B 4 b B vl
and a financial institution Z A
2009 2008
“EZJUE “ETNE
HKS$°000 HK$°000
T#7x T# T
Time deposits placed with banks A7 84T 2 28 WA 3K 244,134 64,933
Deposits placed with a financial FE T 45 B A 2 7 3K
institution 19,241 26,858
263,375 91,791
Time deposits and deposits placed with banks and SE JA A SR A T SR AT T < b i
a financial institution carry fixed interest rates with W2 A7 3K DA E B E R R 3R 1
effective interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.70% FHE > FUEAEE H0.01%%0.70%
(2008: 1.27% to 5.70%) per annum. ( EEZNAE  1.27%F5.70% ) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

20. Time Deposits and Deposits
placed with Banks and a Financial
Institution/Bank Balances and Cash

(Continued)

20. 5E W7 SR A7 4R AT
B BB M2 77 3K,
AT HIL S KA a0

(b) Bank balances and cash
Bank balances carry interest rate at prevailing bank
savings rates ranging from 0% to 0.70% (2008: 0% to
2.50%) per annum.

21. Trade Payables and Bills Payable

®) SAFHAGFBLE
SRATEE AP IR E BTG E AR =X
HEHEFE0%E0.70% ( FEE
J\AE 0% %2.50% ) ©

21. BEAHE 5 IR K
RS = 9%

All trade payables and bills payable were aged within 90
days as at 31 March, 2009 (2008: aged within 90 days).

22. Secured Bank Loans

RoEEZAFE=ZHA=Z+—H AR
58 5y B ek I BB A SRR R e 39 J5 90K
W F TR IRECE 90K A) -

22. $RAT A KA K

2009 2008
e 2 9% 2 “ET)NE
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
T#x T# T
Secured bank loans, with carrying SRAT A HE B H A
amount repayable: 5 0 TR AR R 2 AR T (B

Within one year — 4N 11,476 13,439
In the second year - I SN 8,279 11,476
In the third year BN - 8,279
19,755 33,194

Less: Amount due within one year g FNIRRN B A fE

shown under current liabilities —AE N R R (11,476) (13,439)

8,279 19,755

The bank loans are variable-rate borrowings which carry
interest ranging from 1-month HIBOR + 1.0% to 3-month
HIBOR + 2.5% (2008: 1-month HIBOR + 2.5% to 3-month
HIBOR + 2.5%) per annum, thus exposing the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk.

Allan International Holdings Limited

OO0 i e 2 A R 4 7]

HITERSEARNRFRZ EE F
BB FH S |ATHEES B N0
(—f@AH) ZFBRATHEITE+2.5%
(ZMAA) (= FE/)NAF  FHRATR
PEEM2.5% (— M8 H) & F i RA7 A
(W B+25% (ZMH) ) A% 4
45 6] % 5 3 B 4 U B ) % 2 JEL B o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

distributable profit earned by foreign investment enterprises
since 1 January, 2008 is subject to withholding tax at 10%
of profit distributed to foreign investors. However, pursuant
to the Double Tax Arrangement between Hong Kong and the
PRC, profit distributed from PRC subsidiaries, for which the
equity interests held by the investors are greater than 25%,
the withholding tax rate on such profit distributed is limited
to 5%.

Pursuant to the above mentioned, the Group has recognized
deferred tax liability for the distributable profits earned by its
PRC subsidiaries since 1 January, 2008 accordingly.

23. Deferred Tax Liabilities 23. IR SE B IH £ 15
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities A B AEE REFEND TR E
recognized by the Group and movements thereon during the TREBIHAMU L E P2 -
year and prior years:
Fair value
changes of  Accelerated
an investment tax Withholding
property  depreciation tax Total
B¥EWE T
AV BLE T iKY B
HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
T T#T T#T TH#T
(Note)
(Wit
At 1 April, 2007 REZFZLFEMNH—H 681 12,912 - 13,593
Charge (credit) to the L (FEA) AR B
consolidated income statement AR (Hi9)
for the year (note 9) 868 (1,402) - (534)
At 31 March, 2008 REZEFZANE=ZA=1+—H 1,549 11,510 - 13,059
(Credit) charge to the (FEA) A 4
consolidated income statement AR (M)
for the year (note 9) (115) (1,309) 986 (438)
Effect of change in tax rate (note 9) Bl R 5B 2 %2 (ff7£9) (88) (372) - (460)
At 31 March, 2009 REEFZNE=A=1+—H 1,346 9,829 986 12,161
The Group did not recognise deferred tax assets arising from 7 4R [ S 406 R e SRR JE B TH K E R
tax losses of HK$1,742,000 (2008: HK$3,903,000) due to B L T A B B0491,742,000% 7T
the unpredictability of future project streams. All tax losses (= ZFFZ )\ : 3,903,000 75) Z BiLIH
can be carried forward indefinitely. Y 48 BT 72E AR R A Ui A AR IR o BT A B IE
Y 15, T 40 R 20 24
Note: Under the New Law starting from 1 January, 2008, Mfat: WBikm —FENFE—H—HE

50 HNE % A A FEAE AT AT 4 T ik
=T\ — A — H &A%
10% %7 B s A A5 FE A0 B - {H BR 95 &
V5 B [ OB LI E
F A7 B A 3 A o BiE T 7 2 A R
TEZN25% > BB R AENEE
43 T Y ] BR RE £55% o

PR b At Byt 7 45 1 R RB I 1Y
W~ ml i — T\ —H — Hit
T G Ve ) 2 A0 S R T L A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements E5 A W il
For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BE _FENF=H="1—HILFE

24. Share Capital 24. fr A

2009 & 2008 2009 & 2008
“ERAER FRAER

“EENE “ERENE
Number of
shares HK$ 000
JR 17 T T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each JBE AR T {ELO. 105 JT 22 35 48 ik
Authorised: 208 RS
At beginning and end of the year A H) B A R 600,000,000 60,000
Issued and fully paid AT MR IR
At beginning and end of the year A AT B A & Iy 335,432,520 33,543

25.

Share Option Scheme

25. i LR R T &

Pursuant to the Company’s share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) adopted on 20 August, 2002 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to directors and eligible
employees, the directors and employees of the Company
may, at the discretion of the Company’s directors, be
granted options (the “Options™) to subscribe for shares in
the Company (the “Shares”) at a price determined by its
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheet on the date of the offer of grant, which
must be a trading day; (ii) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheet for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the total number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
and the number of shares in respect of which options may
be granted to any individual in any one year is not permitted
to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
point in time.

Allan International Holdings Limited

O i o o 452 B A B 4 )

WFEANFAR —FZ_F/NA_+H
AR B RE T (T RT3 ]) >
2R ) #E S5 A] I AR R T AR
oA B K E AR 2 AT E S K E B
DhER B AS S A B > BB AR e
EMABER T =Fh 2@ E
OB A EL R RS H (E 5
L5 H) Z Wi fE (LU AC T H 3R
BT At £ e ) 5 i) e A B A0 4% I
I REE Bl AR 2 5 B 2 F ¥l
& (DABRAC BT H R Prdl & A 1e) 5 &
(i) P 103 T {H

W8 A AN F IR P e LM A7 AR
5 1 R RE T B85 1T 2 I UK 158
L0 W NN I B o B i 3
1T BEA 2 10% » S S5 4T B 0 48 #57 {
A AL A TS AN 7 ME A B
BATRAZ1% o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

25.

Share Option Scheme (continued)

B 17 A5 AN S B ik

I

BE = EEAE= = — H I

25.

W I RE ST 3 oa)

26.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from the date of its adoption. Options granted must be
taken up not later than 28 days after the date of grant. A
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the offer
of grant of an option. An option is exercisable on the date
when the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end
in any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of
the options.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the
Scheme.

Related Party Disclosures

26.

S JBCHE it ) ) AR R A 8O0 2 B B
JCHE A A E HB FT 105 - IR T 2
P HE L R 1% T 1228 K N A% > ZH A1
T T AF 2 I B 2 AU o A R
[H] P T B B A 5 > 5% 30 ] ATl 2 e 4%
H M AR R R MEAEAT AT
DU A 743 o 08 PO U AE 10
4o

S e MR T ) A A DA > f7 B 4 T R
i e HE o

HIAREARZ S Z
1 #x

Rental expenses paid or payable by the Group to the related
parties are as follows:

Allan Investment Company Limited g & A PR A A
Income Village Limited A RAF

Fair Pacific Limited i WA BR 22 W

Mr. Cheung Pui e 35 S AR

Certain directors of the Company have beneficial interests in
Allan Investment Company Limited, Income Village Limited
and Fair Pacific Limited. Mr. Cheung Pui is a director of the
Company.

ALECHBREMAHE ST FIA
5 DN

2009 2008
ZREJUAE BTN
HK$’000 HKS$°000
T# F it T

900 900

204 204

340 340

545 318

1,989 1,762

7 A Y T 4y B S B En A BE AR
A il SR BR 2 R B i HE A R A
A M i BAR o SR EG S BAA A F 2
#Ho
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BE T EENFEZH = — HIFFE

26. Related Party Disclosures (continued) 26. LA BE AR L 5 2
=3 e
W& )
There is no key management personnel other than the BRA N E ZEFI WA H A 32
directors of the Company. Details of the directors’ T - BREREM TN S -

emolument are set out in note 8.

The remuneration of directors is recommended by the HHRZME MR B TRE W
Board and determined by the Chairman having regard to the L5 R % UL > R AR ST ) E
performance of individuals, market trends and conditions JE 4R A8 A > B R R B M HEB AT BN
with a view to retain and motivate executives to purpose the B Emy -

Group’s operation.

. Ik, N2 e
27. Operating Lease Arrangements 27. & A A % PE
The Group as lessee
A A B A By TR AL
2009 2008
“ERUAE TEERINAE
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
T#x T# T
Minimum lease payments paid AAEFE B EMAYEZ
during the year under operating K FH A0 45 3%
leases in respect of rented premises 2,209 1,796
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments TAGE L H > A4 [ A W 2E 2 R AT
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable [e] 45 75 FH 40 T 5 S AT A6 47 o I B A+ AR
operating leases which fall due as follows: HZ ARPEWNT -
2009 2008
“EFE e A2
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
TF# F# T
Within one year —A4E A 1,884 1,841
In the second to fifth year inclusive B oBEALFN
(HRMFERFEEN) 2,071 1,970
3,955 3.811

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 e BRI F=H=—+—HIFE
27. Operating Lease Arrangements 27. ‘& A %)% B )
(Continued)

BB LA B Y S AT 2 A & o AH
R4 = AR 21249 1 BR 5 7o B [ E AL A

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for
rented premises. Leases are negotiated for a term of three

years and rentals are fixed throughout the lease period.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year, net of
negligible outgoings, was approximately HK$190,000 (2008:

HK$204,000).

At the balance sheet date, the Group had not contracted
with tenant for future minimum lease payments under non-

MRz -
5 A 2y I RLA

AR AE B FH ) SE A % 45190,000
w0 (. FEE NAF 204,000 70) ©

JREEEH > AR FI R A SR F AT E
I AT A 2 A AL &6 T A A i R R i

cancellable operating lease: FMEMT :
2009 2008
“EZUAE ZEREINAE
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
T# T# T
Within one year — 4N - 379
In the second year N - 348
- 727
. . v
28. Capital Commitments 28. BA K I
2009 2008
“EFIAE ZEE )N
HKS$’000 HKS$°000
T#x T# T
Capital expenditure contracted for but B % 4 2 & A KA (R
not provided in the consolidated R R A BB s F A
financial statements in respect of RALHEYE - BE K
property, plant and equipment 9,892 42,107
Capital expenditure authorised but CHtHEH R E L 2
not contracted for in respect of A ARYE W S R TR &
construction of a factory and ENY NS ]
property, plant and equipment 135,201 128,220
145,093 170,327
Annual Report 2008/2009
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

29. Pledge of Assets

A A

The Group has pledged certain prepaid lease payments
and buildings having carrying amounts of approximately
HK$9,282,000 (2008: HK$9,293,000) and HK$37,000
(2008: HK$171,000) respectively as at 31 March, 2009, to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.

AERR _FFNFE=H=1T—H
£ 6 $1 B TE7 95 (E 40 Bl 499,282,000%5
JC (T FF)NAE £ 9,293,000% J0) K
37,000 76 ( —FF L4 171,000
JG) Z #5 T AT B R OE KT
1B 2y A SR B AR 2 — LR AT (R B 2 4
:jri?,Elo

30. Retirement Benefits Schemes 30. 3B R 48 A 51 &

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong participates in T s BT S W 2 B TE 8 A R
both a defined contribution scheme registered under the R S ER NG RSN K]
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO (IAeat#]) e n —FEEE
Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme BT Y o A BR 4 ) 2 R
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes HlEAEEFE ([mEeFE]) 6%
Ordinance (the “MPF Scheme”) in December 2000. The FHEE E B AL G E A A
assets of the schemes are held separately from those of the A E B AT NPT 2 S
Group, in funds under the control of independent trustees. ERA -
The ORSO Scheme is funded by contributions from SZMAREEF B 288> & H MR E
employees of 5% of their salaries. The employers will ABZ5% o {8 FAFARYE LA T Bl AR 5T
contribute based on the monthly salaries of employees T H 2R B Atk 2 R
according to the following schedule:

Rate of
Number of completed years of service contribution
56 J R 5 4 3] Pk %
Not more than 5 years DR T4 5%
More than 5 years but not more than 10 years Z N LA H AR Z R 104F 7.5%
More than 10 years Z k4R 10%

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March, 2009

30. Retirement Benefits Schemes

(Continued)

i MW

BE - FEENF=H="1—HIFE

»

(7

30. 2B AR F G2 a0

The employees are entitled to the full benefit of the
subsidiaries’ contributions and accrued returns after
participating in the ORSO Scheme for 10 years or more,
or at an increased scale of 30% to 90% after participating
in the ORSO Scheme from 3 to 9 years respectively.
Where an employee leaves the employment prior to
becoming fully entitled to the employer’s contributions,
the excess contributions are forfeited and the employer
may utilise the forfeited contributions to reduce its future
contributions. At 31 March, 2008 and 2009, the Group had
no material unutilised forfeited contributions in the ORSO
Scheme which may be used to reduce the Group’s future
contributions.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 65
and with at least 59 days of service under the employment
in Hong Kong. Contributions from employers and employees
are 5% each of the employee’s relevant income. The
maximum relevant income for contribution purpose is
HK$20,000 per month. The employees are entitled to the
full benefit of the Group’s contributions and accrued returns
irrespective of their length of service with the Group but
the benefits are required by law to be presented until the
retirement age of 65.

The employees of the subsidiaries operating in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. The contributions for
the scheme in the PRC are made based on a percentage of
the average salary as advised by the relevant authority in
the PRC. The contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they became payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme. The subsidiaries
operating in the PRC also contributed to a local municipal
government retirement scheme for all qualified employees in
the PRC. The employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the scheme at the rates specified in
the rules.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement schemes in the PRC is to make the retired
contributions under the schemes. No forfeited contribution
is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future
years.

S MABEEsEWm HEZRE TR
TR == A AR 2 ) 2% MR B 3t 2 3t SRR B
HAA B 5 2 4 B3 2
1 B = 430% 2 90% I8 T 2 {54 -
i 8 B A AR B S B 22 A 1 A R
B B 2 A OR T R TR £ RT
A B IR M 2 Bk e H AR R A 2 fit
K BE_ZZNANR_EENE=NA
=Bk AR5 R A E R B
AT A s H AR A A EOE A

58 A8 4 5T B T ik B A 18 B 65K % 1R
Fis i PSOH Z B B2 A4 H K&
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements %"A ﬁ’f f%ﬁ%% Pk

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BE_FFENF=H="1—HILFE
= >, an
31. Balance Sheet of the Company 3. ARNFIZEREAMER
2009 2008
“EZAE ZEE)NFE
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T#7x T# T
Total assets ML 626,696 393,186
Total liabilities AR 411,113 165,273
Net assets AR R 215,583 227,913
Capital and reserves A K Aot A
Share capital i A 33,543 33,543
Reserves (note) it (M at) 182,040 194,370
215,583 227,913

Allan International Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements EEA B IR il

For the year ended 31 March, 2009 HE_FFNF=H="1—HILFE
T ==
31. Balance Sheet of the Company 3. ARNFIZEEAMER
(Continued) (#5)
Note: Mt it -
Reserves il #
Capital Investment
Share redemption  Contributed revaluation Dividend Retained
premium reserve surplus reserve reserve profits Total
JBt A #¥%
Jbt B B Y e L IN L EX ] Jbt ok BB A

HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
i i i i Tk Tk Tk

At 1 April, 2007 REEFZLENA—H 109,884 793 28,229 (6,596) 23,480 61,655 217,445
Gain on fair value changes Mt ERE

of available-for-sale WATEEEHZ

investments and expense BAME RS

recognized directly TERRZ B 5

in equity = = = 6,232 = = 6,232
Profit for the year R FE i = = - - - 7,590 7,590

Total recognized income for 7% 4F i EL FERR LA

the year - - - 6,232 - 7.590 13,822
Transfer to dividend reserve B AR SRk - - - - 20,126 (20,126) -
Dividends recognized as A3 A M SRR

distributions - - - - (23,480) (13,417) (36,897)
At 31 March, 2008 AEENEZR =41 109,884 793 28,229 (364) 20,126 35,702 194,370
Gain on fair value changes kSR &

of available-for-sale RATFEEZS)Z

investments and expense BAME R A

recognized directly TR 2 B %

in equity - - - 760 - = 760

Investment revaluation HEEM

reserve released on disposal ity B fit

of available-for-sale A B
investments - - - (5) - - (5)
Profit for the year AR B i i - - - = = 13,750 13,750
Total recognized income REEDHERITA
for the year - - - 755 - 13,750 14,505
Transfer to dividend reserve B A B SRk - - - - 40,252 (40,252) -
Dividends recognized A 73 Al M B R
as distributions - - - - (20,126) (6,709) (26,835)
At 31 March, 2009 REZENEZH=+—H 109,884 793 28,229 391 40,252 2,491 182,040
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For the year ended 31 March, 2009

32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

23 F]

32 AN F 2 T E M E

Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as

at 31 March, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

Name of subsidiary

W IS 2 ) 4 A

Allan Electric Mfg., Limited
TfmEER A WA

Allan International Limited*

Allan Mould Manufacturing
Limited
a1 i TR B8 A FR A 7

Allan Plastic Mfg., Limited
o5 A 9 8 R A PR

Allan Toys Manufacturing
Limited
50 B B 5 A BRZ

Allan International Holdings Limited

100 =it sma R

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

kI 3 3%
Xl B

Hong Kong
i

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

KBRS

Hong Kong/PRC
Fi/HH

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
&

REEFAERZFENE= S

L LEES 1

B R

Issued and fully

paid share capital

or registered capital
2009 and 2008

oL RMR

JBe AR o ik i ¥ AR
“ERBNERCERAE

100 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each and 50,000
non-voting deferred shares
of HK$10 each

100/ 45 i T {E 103 T 2
78 fit 50,000/
BRWHE10% T
e PSR R S B A

55,000 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

55,000/ 4 JB¢ T {5 178 7T 2
2

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10045 B2 1 {H 13 7T 2
i

3,005 ordinary shares of
HKS$1 each

3,005 5 IR (B 1 T 2
5 fig

270,000 ordinary shares of
HK$10 each

270,000/ 45 % i {EL 107 7T 2
&5 ik

Principal activities

EEEH

Manufacturing and trading
of household electrical
appliances

HEE T KE5H R E Ay

Investment holding

BRI

Manufacturing of plastic
injection moulds

EEEEEA

Property holding and trading
of household electrical
appliances

FAEYERCHRIEE R

Inactive

LE £33
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32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

32 AN F 2 T E M E

ONE] )

Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as
at 31 March, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

W I 2 i) 4 A

oy TERH (M)
AR

HESe T3 () ARA A

Artreal Manufactory Limited

HESE T3 A R

Conan Electric Manufacturing
Limited

B R4 )

Electrical Investments Limited

Ever Sources Investment
Limited

R EARA R

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

(3 ) WA
Bl B

PRC*
1B

PRC*
2l

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

KBE LIS

Hong Kong
i

REEFAER ZFENE= S

S H o AT 22 Y 2 7 R
W : (A7)

Issued and fully

paid share capital

or registered capital
2009 and 2008

oL RMR

JBe AR o ik i ¥ AR
“ERBNERCERNE

Registered capital of
USD15,000,000
#E MM & 4515,000,0003% G

Registered capital of
HK$75,000,000
skl % 4%75,000,0007 TG

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2 5 PR T 19 6 2
W fi

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2P BT E 19 T 2
&5 i

1 ordinary share of USD1
URHEEIETZ
W fi

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

10045 B2 1 {H 13 7T 2
i

Principal activities

LEEH

Manufacturing and trading
of household electrical
appliances

HE R R AR % e R

Manufacturing of household
electrical appliances

B R REE S

Trading of household
electrical appliances

BB R BE AR

Trading of household
electrical appliances

RS AR IR

Inactive

LR =3

Property holding
EERCE/ES
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements E5 A W
For the year ended 31 March, 2009 BE _FENF=H="1—HILFE

32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries 32. AN 2 E B E

(Continued) /Z_\\ ﬁ‘l (#)
Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as N _EENFERFFNEZHA
at 31 March, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: (Continued) —t—H > ARAEZEEWENF

T - ()

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation paid share capital
or registration/ or registered capital
Name of subsidiary operations 2009 and 2008 Principal activities
T R AR
ek T % 5 JBE AR ik i ¥ AR
B )i 2 W 45 A% Bl R “ERNERERNE FEEH
Global Express (HK) Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares of Investment holding
e (i) HIRA T R0 HKS$1 each BE B
2B IR (1% T
&
Great Yield Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary shares of Investment holding
RIGHRAH s HK$1 each BRE R
A B T {E 19 T 2
HEmEERYEMAERAR  PRC Registered capital of Manufacturing of household
] HK$2,800,000 electrical appliances and
S & 482,800,000 7T plastic parts
R K BE R A B B A
Hinma g Eas E PRC* Registered capital of Manufacturing of household
AHIRAF NG| HK$100,000,000 electrical appliances and
FF 1M ¥ 4 100,000,0007 7T plastic parts
HEE R RE R A BB AT
Karan Electric Manufacturing Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Trading of household
Limited i HK$1 each electrical appliances
FMEXRREAIRA A 100/ 4 B 1 (E 17 7T 2 RS % e T A
98 ik
Ngai Shing (Far East) Plastic Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of HK$10 Development of moulds
& Metalwares Factory 7 s each and 54,000 non-voting and trading of precision
Limited deferred shares of HK$10 components
B (W) B8 T each [ AL I 48 B 0 % e
AR 100 45 JBC T (B 109 7T 2
78 M 54,000/
B REHEI0M T

I 45 S MR T PR A

Allan International Holdings Limited
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32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

(Continued)

32 AN F 2 T E M E

ONE] )

Particulars of the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries as
at 31 March, 2009 and 2008 are as follows: (Continued)

Name of subsidiary

W I 2 i) 4 A

Progress Associates Limited™

Southern Well Holdings
Limited*

7 TR A PR T

Total Profits Limited

Warran Electric Manufacturing
Limited
HEMEENEFRAA

Warran Electric (Macao
Commercial Offshore) Co.
Limited?

e fy (WP RS )
AR

Well Sincere Investment

Limited*

HBEARAA*

& Direct subsidiaries

E'S

March, 2009.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

end of the year.

Place of
incorporation
or registration/
operations

(3 ) WA
Bl B

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

B A

Hong Kong/PRC
i/

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

B A/e i

Hong Kong/PRC
iyl

Macau
|

Hong Kong
i

Wholly foreign-owned enterprises
A This subsidiary was deregistered during the year ended 31

REEFAER ZFENE= S

S H o AT 22 Y 2 7 R
W : (A7)

Issued and fully

paid share capital

or registered capital
2009 and 2008

oL RMR

JBe AR o ik i ¥ AR
“ERBNERCERNE

1 ordinary share of USD1
URE{E13E T
i

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2B R {E 19 T 2
Wi

2 ordinary shares of
USD1 each

2RHE1E T Z
0 R

100 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

100/ 45 i i {E 107 7T 2
&

Quota capital of
MOP100,000
il % 4 72100,000 7% 12

2 ordinary shares of
HK$1 each

2 JBC T {E 19 T 2
&

Principal activities

LEEH

Investment in securities

W E

Property holding
ERCRYES

Investment holding

BRI

Provision of sub-contracting
services

PR AL A RS
Inactive

LR3-S

Investment holding

BRI

o HIENE AR

> #*

EEHNE B AR
B AR ERERE —FFIE=

H=+— HFE NP &R -

i o

TS AR o B > ) AR 2 B AT AT AT 55

Annual Report 2008/2009

—zz)\az—zhiesn 103



Financial Summary YA 65 Mg L

The following table summarises the results, assets and liabilities TRAAEEBZ -ZENFE=H=1—
of the Group for the five years ended 31 March, 2009. H Ik FE AR B 2 3640 B R A A -

For the year ended 31 March,
REZH =N
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005
SRBAE CEEAE CEFEE CREAE CRRAE
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x T#T T#T T#T T T

Revenue e 1,869,529 1,547,825 1,072,144 819,986 793,435
Profit before tax R 8 i ¥ ) 130,881 74,757 79,711 43,626 40,383
Taxation BiIH (23,943) (9,885) (10,616) (6,487) (4,792)
Net profit for the year A T i 1) 106,938 64,872 69,095 37,139 35,591
As at 31 March,
ZH=+—H
2009 2008 2007 2006 2005

SEFAE CRFARE CRFLE CFRAF CFREA
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Fir  T#T  TET  THT  TET

Total assets B AE 1,036,196 916,460 708,482 611,658 608,270
Total liabilities B EAE 414,651 375,633 214,750 157,275 156,791
Net assets B 621,545 540,827 493,732 454,383 451,479

Allan International Holdings Limited
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